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OSAKA Titanium technologies’ predecessor, Osaka 

Titanium Co., Ltd., became Japan’s first successful 

industrialized titanium company in 1952 and remains the 

country’s pioneer in titanium sponge production. Since 

1960, we have also been manufacturing polycrystalline 

silicon. The Company has continued to produce 

materials — titanium and polycrystalline silicon — that 

support modern society. We fulfill this role by supplying 

high-purity and high-quality products, primarily to the 

aerospace and electronics industries. 

  In recent years, the range of titanium and polycrystalline 

silicon applications has expanded significantly. OSAKA 

Titanium technologies aims to maximize the potential of 

these materials in applications from large-scale 

infrastructure to daily necessities: aircraft and 

automobiles that feature an increasingly high degree of 

functionality and lightweight structures; the increasing 

number of LNG manufacturing plants as sources of 

low-carbon energy ; seawater desalination plants 

whose needs are expanding globally to solve water 

resource issues; semiconductors that support the 

electronics industry; digital home appliances that 

penetrate every aspect of our daily lives; and leisure 

and sporting goods.

  In addition, we are focusing on the production and 

development of high-performance materials as new 

products based on titanium and polycrystalline silicon.

  In order to realize the society's aspiration for a more 

abundant, faster and safer society, as their top 

manufacturer, we will continuously strive to bring out the 

inexhaustible potential of titanium and polycrystalline 

silicon.
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Lightweight, strong and rustproof, titanium boasts the 

full range of metallic properties needed by users to 

fulfill their aspirations and meet their needs. These 

characteristics render titanium ideal as a material for 

important machinery and facilities parts used under 

severe conditions, such as in aircraft and power and 

chemical plants.

  The range of applications has expanded to 

encompass automotive parts, golf clubs, spectacle 

frames, accessories and other everyday products.  

From the perspective of the environment — an 

indispensable factor in the 21st century — expectations 

of titanium as a lightweight material that delivers 

energy savings will continue to escalate.

  We supply high-quality titanium sponge and titanium 

ingots to mill product manufacturers. Although the 

production process requires advanced technologies 

and stringent quality controls, we are leveraging our 

unique technologies acquired over many years of 

operations to optimize titanium’s potential as a 

material.

Si l icon wafers are used as substrates for al l  

semiconductors in products including personal 

computers, smartphones and digital cameras, and are 

indispensable materials in the electronics industry.

  These silicon wafers are produced at monocrystalline 

wafer manufacturers, and we produce and sell the 

high-purity polycrystalline silicon that is a raw material 

for monocrystalline silicon.

  Since OTC began making polycrystalline silicon in 

1960, it has made successive improvements to its 

developmental technologies while maintaining the 

world’s top quality standards (11N=99.999999999%) 

for semiconductor-grade products.

Titanium

OTC’s high-quality titanium sponge 
finds applications as a material used 
for important parts in aircraft and in 
power, chemical and other plants

OTC’s high-purity 
polycrystalline silicon is employed 
as a monocrystalline silicon raw 
material for silicon wafers

With the future in mind, 
we will focus on fostering a 
third core business

We produce and sell high-performance materials such 

as high-purity titanium (a new application product for 

titanium and polycrystalline silicon), SiO, TILOP 

(spherical titanium powder) and other types of titanium 

powder.

  In addition, we will deploy our substantial resources 

and cultivate this area as our third core business both in 

name and in reality.

・Aircraft Manufacturers

・Plant Manufacturers

・Consumer Product 
 Manufacturers

OSAKA Titanium technologies’ business Other companies’ business

Mill Product 
Manufacturers

Materials and 
Fabricated 

Product 
Manufacturers

Product 
Manufacturers

・Digital Home Appliance 
 Manufacturers

・Solar Cell Manufacturers,
 etc.

Product 
Manufacturers

・Digital Home Appliance 
 Manufacturers

・Personal Computer 
 Manufacturers

・Mobile Telephone
 Manufacturers

Monocrystalline 
Wafer 

Manufacturers

Semiconductor 
Manufacturers

Product 
Manufacturers

Metallic
Silicon

High-purity Titanium
SiO

TILOP
Titanium Powder

Polycrystalline Silicon

Titanium Sponge

Titanium Ingot

High-performance 
Materials

Raw Materials 
for Titanium

Calcined
Cokes

Business and Products

Polycrystalline
Silicon

High-performance
Materials
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Aircraft

Aircraft Engines

Plate Heat Exchangers

©Rolls-Royce plc 2011

(photo courtesy Alfa Laval Japan)

(photo courtesy Nakashima Medical Co., Ltd.)

©AIRBUS

Personal Computers Smartphones Digital Cameras

Implants(Artificial Bones) Liquid Crystal Televisions SiO(Barrier Film)

Applications of Titanium

Applications of High-performance Materials

Applications of Polycrystalline Silicon
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President & Representative Director

Shozo Nishizawa

We will strive to further reinforce our business foundation to 
ensure “persistent and stable growth”

Message from the President
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We would like to extend our deepest sympathies and condolences 

to those affected by the Great East Japan Earthquake. Facing the 

scenes of devastat ion beyond imaginat ion, any word of 

encouragement may sound hollow. However, we experienced the 

Great Hanshin Awaji Earthquake 16 years ago and were able to 

recover due to the good wishes and support of many people. We 

believe that the Tohoku region will also recover one day and we 

hope you recover swiftly.

　

Fiscal 2010 was truly a “tempestuous year”. In addition to, severe 

business conditions such as sudden appreciation of the yen and 

the steep rise in raw material prices, our entire company worked 

together to comply with the High-pressure Gas Safety Act for 

polycrystalline silicon in the first half of the year and to respond to 

the increase in demand for our products (which exceeded our 

expectations) in the second half of the year.

  In the titanium business, although we expected a slight increase 

in demand for titanium sponge for mill products at the beginning 

of the year, we assumed that the decline in market prices would 

create a difficult situation. From the middle of the year, however, 

inventories adjustment progressed both in Japan and abroad and 

the production of conventional-model aircraft for export 

increased, which led to a rapid recovery of demand, mainly in the 

engine sector. In addition, sales of titanium sponge for mill 

products in Japan increased significantly as demand for overseas 

power and industrial plants recovered and a large quantity of 

titanium was sold to seawater desalination plants.

  As for titanium sponge for steel additives, the market price and 

sales both increased due to the recovery of demand for steel.

  In the polycrystalline silicon business, both production and sales 

decreased significantly due to the temporary shutdown of the 

related production facilities at Amagasaki Plant to comply with the 

High-pressure Gas Safety Act  as well as the decline in production 

capacity following the resumption of the production (annual 

capacity was reduced from 1,500 tons to 900 tons). 

  In the high-performance materials business, sales of high-purity 

titanium and TILOP increased significantly due to increases in 

demand for semiconductors and liquid crystals.

  As a result, sales during this fiscal year were 33,758 million yen, 

a 5.8% increase compared to the previous year. As for profits and 

losses, we posted an operating loss of 4,320 million yen, an 

ordinary loss of 5,012 million yen and a net loss of 4,173 million 

yen due to drops in sales prices, a loss from the shutdown of 

polycrystalline silicon plant operations, adjustment for changes in 

accounting standards for asset retirement obligations, the 

appreciation of the yen, and the cost of facility repairs to cope 

with production enhancement.

(Millions of Yen)

33,758

2009/3 2010/3 2011/3

●Net Sales

31,908

52,089

2009/3 2010/3 2011/3

●Ordinary Income

(Millions of Yen)

-5,012435

●Operating Income

2009/3 2010/3 2011/3

(Millions of Yen)

-4,320

14,694

1,564

(Millions of Yen)

-4,173

2009/3 2010/3 2011/3

124

●Net Income

8,248
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The significant increase in demand during the 
second half of the year offset the negative growth
due to reduced production in the first half of the year

Summary for Fiscal 2010 (Year ended March 2011)
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Net Sales Operating Income Ordinary Income Net Income

67,500 7,000 6,500 3,800

Significant increase in demand expected, sales to double and surplus to be secured

Although there is a concern over the negative effects of 
the Great East Japan Earthquake in March 2011 on 
production and consumption, we do not expect it to have 
a significant impact on our business, although we believe 
it is necessary to continually monitor the situation 
carefully.
  I n  t h e  t i t a n i u m  b u s i n e s s ,  t h e  p ro d u c t i o n  o f  
conventional-model aircraft for export is still robust, and 
demand for new aircraft is expected to increase. In the 
domestic market, we expect the recovery in demand for 
overseas power and industrial plants to continue. We 
therefore expect a generally increasing trend.

  In the polycrystalline silicon business, we expect 
demand for semiconductors to continue to increase due 
to new applications such as smartphones. In addition, we 
wil l  stabi l ize demand by actively cult ivat ing new 
customers and entering into long-term contracts. The 
increase in production at the Amagasaki Plant and the 
Kishiwada Plant will also help boost sales significantly.
  As for high-performance materials, sales of high-purity 
titanium in particular are expected to rise due to the 
increase in demand for semiconductors.
  Based on the above, the prospects for fiscal 2011 are as 
follows:

“Good relationships with customers” supported by “quick responses in short distance sales”

Ever since I assumed the position of president, I have 
repeatedly emphasized the importance of “short distance 
sales” activities which enable us to collaborate with 
customers. I am pleased to report that such activities 
have started to produce positive results. Through the 
constant exchange of information with customers, we 
were able to understand current issues, problems, and 
customers’ needs, and to take effective actions with the 
production, sales and technology divisions working 
together. The quick response has further promoted the 
relationships with our customers and resulted in the 
acquisition of new customers.
  When demand for titanium and polycrystalline silicon 
increased drastically in the second half of the year, we 
were able to quickly obtain enough raw materials, 
enhance our facilities to expand the production and 
secure sufficient personnel, etc., thus fully taking 

advantage of the recovery in demand. I also have high 
expectations for “short distance sales” activities to 
establish a stable business foundation that is not affected 
by the market.

Thorough implementation of risk management measures

For the management of risk, we have established the 
Compliance and Risk Management Committee to 
monitor the Company’s legal compliance and the 
corporate response to legal reforms. Last April, we 
discovered that some of our facilities did not comply with 
the High-pressure Gas Safety Act. We acted quickly by 
halting and improving the related facilities, requesting 
that our customers understand the need for quantity 
adjustments and reporting to the relevant public 
agencies. Based on this experience, we will take further 
steps to promote the compliance and risk management 

system in future.
  In the second half of the last fiscal year, we established 
the Business Continuity Plan (BCP) Review Committee to 
discuss various issues related to expected disasters 
(evacuation sites, recovery of production facilities and 
production capacity, etc.) .  The Great East Japan 
E a r t h q u a k e  o c c u r re d  i m m e d i a t e l y  a f t e r  t h a t .  
Consequently, we were able to bring together the relevant 
internal parties and respond quickly to what was 
predicted to occur. Based on this valuable experience, 
we will formulate a more robust BCP.

Prospects for Fiscal 2011 (Year ending March 2012)

●Prospects for Fiscal 2011（Announced on April 27, 2011） (Millions of Yen)
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President & Representative Director

August 2011

Year to reinforce business foundation and take an extra step to realize the next phase of growth

Outlook and Aspirations for the Future

In fiscal 2010, we implemented various measures to 

secure the next phase of growth and realized steady 

results. Fiscal 2011 will be the second year of the 

medium-term management plan, and we will fully utilize 

our past results and reinforce our business foundation. 

The following are major issues we should deal with to 

achieve this goal, as well as detailed measures that will 

be used as our activity guidelines:

1. Expansion of our production capacity
As ment ioned above,  demand for  t i tan ium and 

polycrystalline silicon is expected to increase significantly 

in 2011 and 2012. Increasing capacity at the Amagasaki 

Plant and the Kishiwada Works is the key to responding 

to these markets.

  In the titanium business, we plan to establish annual 

capacity of 40,000 tons with the objective of “responding 

to the titanium-related production enhancement”. We 

would like to raise the level of customer satisfaction in 

terms of quality, quantity and delivery time.

  In the polycrystalline silicon business, the Kishiwada 

Plant plans to start full-scale operations and additional 

capacity enhancement. Measures will also be taken to 

recover production quantity at the Amagasaki Plant. We 

will fulfill our customers’ needs in the 3,900-tons-per-year 

production system.

2. Activities aimed at achieving “the optimum results 
for the whole”
Certain results have been realized through activities 

aimed at integrating production, sales and technological 

divisions. However, the environment is quickly changing, 

and customers’ demands are intensifying every year. If 

we ever become content with the current situation, we 

will be left behind in competition with other companies. 

We need to accelerate the speed at which we improve 

and develop to raise the level of our integration activities. 

We should not cling to divisions and sectionalism, and 

we need to understand each other’s circumstances and 

act from the perspective of “the optimum results for the 

whole”.

3. Improving response to the business environment
Responding to the changes in the world is not only 

relevant to such divisions as sales and development, but 

also involves certain factors such as whether we will be 

able to seamlessly respond to the environmental changes 

surrounding our company. From the viewpoint of social 

demands, we need to review diversifying forms of 

employment and their related systems, deploy systems 

that utilize the information system, and steadily promote 

measures to conserve energy and deal with global 

warming.

  Keeping in mind that  the abi l i ty  to respond to 

environmental changes determines a company’s future 

these days, we will actively advance our reform efforts.

  The medium-term management plan established in 

February 2010 was modified in April 2011 based on 

changes in the business environment. According to this 

plan, we will mobilize the technology, solidarity and 

organizational forces we have accumulated in the past to 

advance our business in terms of production, sales and 

results in Fiscal 2011.

  This will be the year in which both our personnel and 

organization grow stronger and become larger. We have 

therefore decided on this year’s slogan: Looking Forward, 

Change and Growth for People and the Organization.  

Under this slogan, we will exert all our strength. We look 

forward to the continuous support and goodwill of 

shareholders, investors and other stakeholders.
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■Changes in the Business Environment■Changes in the Business Environment

■Rolling Medium-term Management Plan■Rolling Medium-term Management Plan

■Market Trends■Market Trends

■Business Policies■Business Policies

<Changes in the business environment since the formulation of 
                               medium-term management plan in February 2010>

Implement the Rolling
Medium-term Management Plan

Titanium Business

Titanium Business

　●Secure stable revenues by increasing the number of long-term contracts
　●Seize opportunies for sales expansion when demand increases

Polycrystalline Silicon Business

　●Continue full production and sales based on long-term contracts

High-performance Materials Business

　●Develop high-performance materials as the third core business 
       segment through intensively investing our development resources

Common Policies in all Businesses

●Reinforce cost and quality competitiveness 
   by utilizing state-of-the art facilities

●Further promote measures to protect the 
   environment and to conserve energy

●Selection and concentration of R&D subjects

Further appreciation of the yen

Mill Product 
Market 

for Aircraft

【Immediate outlook: 2010-2011】
・Advancement of inventory adjustments mainly in the engine area
・Recovery of demand for aircraft (conventional models)
・Increase in the proportion of titanium sponge due to 
  insufficient supply of scrap

【Medium-term outlook: 2012 and subsequently】
・Increasing demand for new aircraft (B787, A350)
・Recovery in the proportion of scrap
・Improvement of processing technologies
  (increase in product processing yields)

For Industrial
Applications
Mill Product 

Market

【Immediate outlook: 2010-2011】
・Most inventory adjustments completed in the 
  first half of fiscal 2010
・A large amount of titanium to be used in 
  large-scale seawater desalination plants

【Medium-term outlook: 2012 and subsequently】
・Recovery in demand for power and industrial 
  plants

Market environment

Raw materials and
energy markets

●Adhere to the Basic Business Policies

●Organize New Measures to Deal with Environmental Changes
●Reflect Effects of Environmental Changes in Numerical Goals

・Aim for a persistent and stable growth based on the two core businesses of titanium and polycrystalline silicon
・Focus on developing a third core business for the future

Rolling Medium-term Management Plan（April 2011）

Significant increase in quantities requested by customers
(exceeding the original plan)

Stable expansion

Significant increase in quantities requested by customers
(exceeding the original plan)

Stable expansion

●The expected rate in the original plan (90 yen/dollar) was 
changed to 83 yen/dollar.

●Titanium: Rapid recovery of demand and significant expansion 
of titanium sponge

●Polycrystalline silicon: Increase in demand exceeding 
expectations  ※Compliance with the High-pressure Gas Safety Act

●High-performance materials: Increase in demand for 
semiconductors and liquid crystals

●Supply and demand of raw materials for titanium tightened and 
prices increased

●Prices of polycrystalline silicon raw materials increased
●Energy prices increased
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●Cash Flow(5years)

●Fulfill customers’ requests to increase
    the supply quantity and increase the 
    number of long-term contracts
●Transfer the increase in raw material
    prices and energy costs to sales prices

●Secure stable procurement through 
    long-term contracts
●Discover new sources

●Reinforce production capacity for titanium sponge

Titanium Business Polycrystalline Silicon Business

Polycrystalline Silicon Business High-performance Materials Business

■Outline of the Rolling Medium-term Management Plan■Outline of the Rolling Medium-term Management Plan

●Performance Outlook

●Measures Based on Changes in the Business Environment

　Titanium　

　Polycrystalline Silicon

　

Net Sales

Operating Income

Ordinary Income

Net Income

Total Assets

Borrowings

Fiscal 2010 
(Actual)

264
46
28
338
ー43
ー50
ー42

1255
584

16％EBITDA Margin

2014
 (Original Plan)

320
270
30
620
125
120
70

800
100

37％

2014 
(Rolling Plan)

430
270
40
740
130
130
80

950
200

33％

(100 Millions of Yen)

(Original)(Rolling) (Difference)

(Original)(Rolling) (Difference)

(Original)(Rolling) (Difference)

840

ー590

250

800

ー470

330

＋40

ー120

ー80

(100 Millions of Yen)

Exchange rate used for calculation　　¥86/＄　　　　　　　　　  　       ¥83/＄　 　　 　　¥90/＄

Based on the fixed amount method of depreciation

・Decrease in Debt
・Increase in Shareholder Return

Fourth quarter in fiscal 2011

40,000tons

High-purity
Titanium

(target materials
 for semiconductors)

TILOP
(target materials

 for liquid crystals)

【Immediate outlook: 2010-2011,
Medium-term outlook: 2012 and subsequently】
・Demand to steadily increase

SiO
(for solar cell back sheets)

Sales

Production

Raw materials’
procurement

●Increased production and sales in 
    accordance with the rise in demand
    (high-purity titanium/ TILOP)

●Accelerate development of negative electrode 
    materials for rechargeable batteries.

High-performance Materials Business
Production
and sales

Research and 
Development

●Actively expand sales to new customers
●Secure stable revenues through long-term 
    contracts

●Restore production capacity at the Amagasaki Plant
　900 tons to 1,400 tons (after April 2011)
●Increase capacity of the Kishiwada Works
　2,200 tons to 2,500 tons (after 4Q in fiscal 2011)

●Expand new procurement sources for 
　polycrystalline silicon raw materials

Sales

Production

Finance ●Adopt the fixed amount method for
　depreciation at the Kishiwada Plant
　Fixed percentage method (original plan)
　→fixed amount method (rolling plan)

Polycrystalline
Silicon

Cash Flows from Operating Activities

Cash Flows from Investing Activities

　Balance (Free Cash Flow)

【Immediate outlook: 2010-2011】
・Record high demand for semiconductors in 2010

【Immediate outlook: 2010-2011】
・Record high demand for semiconductors in 2010
【Medium-term outlook: 2012 and subsequently】
・Increase in demand to exceed expectation in the
  original plan

【Immediate outlook: 2010-2011】
・Demand to be adjusted in 2011
【Medium-term outlook: 2012 and subsequently】
・Increase in demand to exceed expectation in the
  original plan

【Medium-term outlook: 2012 and subsequently】
・Demand for semiconductors to steadily expand
  and supply capacity to increase in proportion

Increase in demand to exceed expectation in the original plan

Annual production
capacity of Fourth quarter in fiscal 2011

3,900tonsAnnual production
capacity of 

Raw materials’
procurement

High-performance
Materials
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Titanium demand began to increase in 2010 due to the 

progress made in inventory adjustments and the 

recovery of actual demand, mainly for commercial 

aircraft. Therefore, we quickly restarted the suspended 

operations of some facilities and resumed investment in 

capacity expansion that had been halted in August 

2010 (2nd Step). As a result, annual capacity increased 

to 37,000 tons in July this year in response to the recent 

increase in demand.

  Demand for titanium is expected to increase steadily in 

and after fiscal 2012 due to the mass production of new 

models of commercial aircraft and the increased 

demand for overseas plants, which include power and 

seawater desalination plants. Thus, we are currently 

investing to expand capacity (3rd Step), and annual 

capacity will reach 40,000 tons in the fourth quarter of 

fiscal 2011.

●Annual Capacity of Titanium Sponge (based on actual production capacity)

Topics

1st
Step

31,000tons
Operations began in October 2008

2nd
Step

37,000tons
Operations began in July 2011

3rd
Step

40,000tons
Scheduled to start operations

in the fourth quarter of fiscal 2011

Titanium
Titanium Sponge 
Capacity Expansion
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●Annual Capacity of Polycrystalline Silicon

One of major areas of demand for our company’s 

polycrystalline silicon is semiconductors. Given that 

applications of semiconductors are expanding 

beyond computers such as smartphones, demand 

will certainly increase in the future.

  We began building the polycrystall ine sil icon 

Kishiwada Plant at the Kishiwada Works in July 2009 

with annual capacity of 2,200 tons and construction 

was completed in November 2010. Commercial 

production began in January this year, one month 

earlier than scheduled.

  To respond to an increasing demand for polycrystalline 

silicon for use in semiconductors, we will build some 

facilities at the Kishiwada Plant and further enhance 

capacity.

<Details of additional investment for capacity increase>

　Capacity: Kishiwada Plant +300 tons/year

　Investment: 1,300 million yen

　Scheduled to start: The fourth quarter of fiscal 2011

  At the Amagasaki Plant, operations were suspended 

temporar i ly  in  May 2010 to comply  wi th  the 

High-pressure Gas Safety Act. Operations resumed in 

August with annual capacity of 900 tons. In April this 

year, recovery construction work was completed and 

annual capacity returned to 1,400 tons.

  Including the additional investment at the Kishiwada 

Plant, annual polycrystalline silicon capacity will be 

3,900 tons.

Total: 3,900tons
in the fourth quarter of fiscal 2011

 3,600tons
(as of April 2011)

at the Amagasaki Plant at the Kishiwada Plant

1,400tons 2,200tons
at the Amagasaki Plant at the Kishiwada Plant

1,400tons 2,500tons

Polycrystalline Silicon Kishiwada Plant

Start-up of the Polycrystalline Silicon Kishiwada Plant and 
Production Recovery at the Amagasaki Plant

Polycrystalline
Silicon

Current 
total:
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Demand for Commercial Aircraft

●Per Plane Usage of Titanium in Commercial-model Aircraft

●Ratio of Metal Materials Used in Aircraft:
　By Weight/By Aircraft Type

B：Boeing　A：Airbus

(Source: Compiled from data related to commercial aircraft)

(Source: “Titanium Japan,” Quarterly Journal of the
Japan Titanium Society, and AMM Aero Strategy)

B737
B777

A320

20 to 50tons

12tons

The number of commercial aircraft both Boeing and 

Airbus produced remained at a very high level in 

2010, nearly reaching 1,000. The number of back 

orders is also large at approximately 6,800 aircraft as 

of the end of December 2010, the equivalent of the 

quantity produced in seven years.

  To respond to robust orders, Boeing and Airbus are 

both planning to increase production for some 

models.

  New Boeing and Airbus models - the B787, the 

A380 and the A350, - consume more titanium in 

terms of both percentage and volume than their 

conventional models do because of the pursuit of 

aircraft weight reduction and improvement of 

comfort of their cabins.

  Demand for commercial aircraft has already begun 

to recover and increase since the beginning of 2010. 

I t  wi l l  expand further, as the production of 

conventional-model aircraft will increase and the 

new models will be produced.

Future Key Models

B787 80tons

A380
A350

110tons
90tons

(Year)

(Number of Aircraft)

Titanium Alloy

(％)
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70
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40

30

20
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0
B737 B777 A380 A350 B787

●Comparison of Aircraft Deliveries

Composite Material Aluminium Alloy
Steel Others

(Source: The Airline Monitor）

Actual Forecast

Conventional models New models（B787,B747-8,A350,A380）

Conventional models New models

0
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1,500

Market Data

08 09 10 11 12 201413

Forecast at the end of February 2011

Forecast at the end of July 2009

©AIRBUS

Titanium

Conventional Models
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Trend in the Global Semiconductor Market

The semiconductor market contracted after the 
Lehman shock in 2008. After the negative growth in 
2009, however, the market quickly recovered in 
2010, rising by approximately 30% compared to the 
previous year to the highest level in its history.
  In 2011, growth is expected to rise by about 5% 
compared to the previous year.
  According to the World Semiconductor Trade 
Statistics (WSTS), the market is expected to grow 
steadily in and after 2012 since demand for 
semiconductors will rise due to increased demand 
for digital home appliances (such as liquid crystal 
TVs) in newly emerging countries including China, as 
well as new applications such as smartphones and 
tablet-type portable terminals.

●Actual Results and Forecasts for 
　Titanium Mill Product Shipments to the U.S.

Note: Mill products refer to cast billets, extrusions, 
         and processed ingots such as bars, wires and plates

Demand for Titanium in the U.S.

Our titanium sponge is primarily exported to the 
United States. The quantity of titanium products 
shipped to the United States hit a record high of 
34,800 tons in 2008. However, due to inventory 
adjustments caused by the delay in delivery of the 
B787 and other factors, the quantity shipped fell by 
approximately 20% to 27,700 tons in 2009. It then 
quickly recovered in 2010 to 38,300 tons, a record 
level since demand increased in the commercial 
a i r c r a f t  s e c t o r.  A s  t h e  p r o d u c t i o n  o f  
conventional-model aircraft is expected to rise and 
new models will be produced, demand in this area is 
expected to increase further in and after 2011.

Demand for Polycrystalline Silicon for Semiconductors

There are basically two types of polycrystalline silicon 
- one is used in semiconductors and the other in 
solar cells.
  We specialize in manufacturing and selling 
polycrystalline silicon used in semiconductor. Unlike 
the polycrystalline silicon used for solar cells, the 
polycrystalline silicon our company produces and 
sells requires not only super-high purity (11N level), 
but also extremely strict quality control. Therefore, 
only a handful of manufacturers in the world are able 
to produce this type of polycrystalline silicon.
  Demand for polycrystal l ine s i l icon in the 
semiconductor area is linked with demand for 
semiconductors and is expected to continue growing 
in and after 2011.
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Results and Overview by Segment Titanium Business
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0
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(Expected)

At the beginning of the year, sales prices of titanium 
sponge for mill products dropped despite the increase 

in sales and therefore difficult conditions were 

expected to persist. 

  However, demand quickly recovered, especially in the 

engine area, as inventory adjustments progressed both 

in Japan and overseas and the production of 

conventional-model aircraft increased. This is a 

beneficial factor for titanium sponge exports.

  Demand in Japan also increased significantly given 

that demand for power and industrial plants overseas 

recovered and seawater desalination plants began 

using t itanium in large volumes. Under these 

conditions, we actively increased capacity by promptly 

resuming suspended operations of some facilities and 

capacity expansion construction work that had been 

stopped. Sales of titanium sponge for mill products 

increased significantly this year compared to the 

previous year.

  Both sales and prices of titanium sponge to be added 

to steel are recovering.

  We posted sales of 26,390 million yen in the titanium 

business, an increase of approximately 39% compared 

to fiscal 2009.

In exports, production of conventional-model aircraft is 

strong and demand for new models of aircraft is 

expected to rise. Demand in Japan for titanium to be 

used for overseas power and industrial plants is 

expected to continue recovering. Thus, supply and 

demand are expected to be tight. Under these 

conditions, we will establish annual capacity of 40,000 

tons (based on actual production capacity) by the 

fourth quarter of fiscal 2011 to respond to demand 

from our customers. Based on the significant increase 

in sales and higher sales prices compared to the 

previous year’s contracts, we expect sales for fiscal 

2011 (ending March 2012) to be 36,400 million yen, an 

increase of approximately 37% compared to fiscal 

2010.

Main Products

Titanium Sponge
OTC’s titanium sponge finds a 
broad range of applications 
spanning the aerospace industry 
and general industrial 
applications. In particular, our 
titanium sponge for aircraft 
engine parts, referred to as 
premium grade, is manufactured 
under a very strict quality 
control system.

Titanium Ingot
We produce large-scale titanium 
ingots characterized by the 
excellence of their surface 
conditions and internal quality. 
They are processed into sheets 
and pipes for heat exchangers 
in such large-scale facilities as 
thermal and nuclear power 
generation plants, as well as in 
petrochemical and seawater 
desalination plants.

●Sales Breakdown (Fiscal 2010)

78.2%

Titanium Business

Overview of Fiscal 2010
(Year ended March 2011)

Outlook for Fiscal 2011
(Year ending March 2012)

26,390

36,400

18,857

（37％increase）
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Results and Overview by Segment Polycrystalline Silicon Business
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2010/3 2011/3 2012/3
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11,298

●Net Sales

4,553
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●Sales Breakdown (Fiscal 2010)

Titanium
Business

（510％increase）

At the Amagasaki Plant, operations were suspended 

temporarily from May to August last year to comply 

with the High-pressure Gas Safety Act, and the 

facilities were improved. We focused on the early 

resumption of operations during the construction 

phase to fulfill our obligations to customers, and 

production resumed at the level of 900 tons a year. 

Because of these reasons, sales dropped significantly.

  At the Kishiwada Plant where construction began in 

2009, commercial production was initiated in January 

2011, one month earlier than scheduled, although 

additional work was performed to comply with the 

High-pressure Gas Safety Act. 

  Sales in the polycrystalline silicon business were 

4,553 million yen, a decrease of approximately 59% 

compared to fiscal 2009.

Demand for semiconductors is expected to increase 

steadily due to their expanded range of applications 

such as in smartphones. Therefore, we are actively 

trying to expand our sales activities and execute 

long-term contracts. Under these conditions, we 

increased investment to raise capacity at the 

Kishiwada Plant. The combined annual production 

capacity of Amagasaki Plant and Kishiwada Plant is 

expected to reach 3,900 tons in the fourth quarter of 

fiscal 2011.

  Sales in fiscal 2011 are expected to be 27,800 million 

yen, an increase of approximately 510% compared to 

fiscal 2010.

Polycrystalline Silicon
OTC produces semiconductor 
grade "11N(eleven-nine)" 
polycrystalline silicon with 
99.999999999% purity. This 
product finds its primary 
application as monocrystalline 
silicon raw materials for 
semiconductor substrates.

Overview of Fiscal 2010
(Year ended March 2011)

Outlook for Fiscal 2011
(Year ending March 2012)

（Millions of Yen）
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Results and Overview by Segment High-performance Materials Business
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8.3%
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●Net Sales 

2,815
3,300

1,753

●Sales Breakdown (Fiscal 2010)

（17％increase）

As a resul t  of  the increasing demand in the 

semiconductor and liquid crystal areas and our 

vigorous efforts to expand sales, sales of TILOP and 

high-purity titanium increased significantly. Sales in 

the high-performance materials business were 2,815 

million yen, an increase of approximately 60% 

compared to fiscal 2009.

As demand in the semiconductor area expands, sales 

of high-purity titanium are expected to increase further.

  Sales in fiscal 2011 (ending March 2012) are estimated 

to be 3,300 million yen, an increase of approximately 

17% compared to fiscal 2010.

Overview of Fiscal 2010
(Year ended March 2011)

Outlook for Fiscal 2011
(Year ending March 2012)

High-purity Titanium
Our 4N5 (99.995%) and 5N 
(99.999%) high-purity titanium 
are used in applications such as 
sputtering targets, which are 
indispensable to the 
semiconductor manufacturing 
process.

Silicon Monoxide (SiO)
Our high-quality silicon 
monoxide is produced by using 
vacuum technologies for 
titanium sponge manufacturing.  
In addition to using this product 
in food packaging and as a 
protective film deposition 
material for electrical and 
electronic components, we are 
investigating such applications 
as negative electrode materials 
for lithium-ion rechargeable 
batteries.

TILOP
We produce the spherical 
titanium powder “TILOP” using 
the gas atomization method 
industrialized by our company 
for the first time in the world. 
This product has fewer 
impurities (such as oxygen) and 
a higher level of cleanliness than 
other products, and is used as 
raw materials for powder 
metallurgy process and 
sputtering target materials, etc.

High-performance
Materials Business

Polycrystalline Silicon
Business

Titanium
Business

20
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In addition to titanium sponge for mill products, we 

produce high-purity titanium.　These products are 

usually supplied in the form of billets.

  Our high-purity titanium, with purity levels of 4N5 

(99.995%) and 5N (99.999%), is mainly used for 

manufacturing high-purity titanium sputtering targets  

Photograph 1  utilized in the semiconductor industry.  

  As one of the few high-purity titanium manufacturers 

in the world, we wil l  continuously develop our 

technologies and respond to demand for higher 

quality.

Achieving Further Improvements in the Quality of High-purity Titanium

High-purity titanium, TILOP, titanium powder and SiO 
use titanium and polycrystalline silicon, which are our 
major businesses, and offer significant possibilities 
and promise.
  Capitalizing on our strength of “Excellence in Quality 

and Quality Control,” we are focusing our efforts on 
developing new applications and new products 
targeting markets such as semiconductors, liquid 
crystals, solar cells and lithium-ion rechargeable 
batteries. 

High-performance Materials with Good Growth Potential

Products

Target Materials
(for Semiconductors)

Personal Computers Liquid Crystal Televisions Solar Panels Smartphones

Target Materials
(for Liquid Crystals)

Sealing Materials
(for Backing Sheets for Solar Cells)

Negative Electrode Materials
(for Lithium-ion Rechargeable Batteries)

High-purity Titanium TILOP Silicon Monoxide (SiO)

Block Powder

Photograph 1  High-purity Titanium Sputtering Target

Applications

End Products

Technology Development
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Membranes which are vapor-deposited with silicon 

monoxide (SiO) exhibit excellent barrier properties 

preventing the permeation of water vapor and oxygen.  

It is on this basis that SiO is used for making gas 

barrier packaging films.  Our high-quality SiO already 

has a proven track record as a barrier material for 

food packaging and commands the largest share of 

the industry market. The range of uses of SiO is 

expanding, such as in solar cell back sheets, where 

even greater barrier properties are required, and as 

industrial packaging. 

  Dramatic growth is also expected in its use in 

negative electrodes of lithium-ion rechargeable 

batteries  Figure 1 , which have a high level of energy 

density and are widely used as a power source for mobile 

telephones and laptop computers.  The advancing 

functionality of these devices demands a higher battery 

capacity, which in turn requires development of a next 

generation negative electrode material with a greater 

electricity storage capacity than that of conventional 

materials. We have positioned SiO as the most important 

material for next-generation negative electrode materials. 

In order to commercialize SiO, we are undergoing 

assessments by our customers (battery manufacturers) 

and conducting research and development.

Expanding Applications of Silicon Monoxide (SiO)

Introduction to TILOP

Lithium

Flow of Electrons

Negative ElectrodePositive Electrode
Separator

Electrolyte

(Positive Electrode Material) (Negative Electrode Material)

We manufacture two types of titanium powder, titanium 

hydride-dehydride powder and gas-atomized spherical 

titanium powder  Photograph 2  .

  Only a small number of companies around the world 

manufacture gas-atomized spherical titanium powder.  

We have  deve loped our  own techno logy  fo r  

manufacturing this product, which is marketed under 

the trade name of TILOP.　
  TILOP offers excellent f luidity because of its 

spherical shape and is used as a material for metal 

injection molding (MIM).  In addition, it has a very low 

level of oxygen impurity.  Being of such good quality, 

TILOP is utilized to make alloy targets used for liquid 

crystal panel manufacturing.

  The gas atomization method can be applied to 

produce various titanium alloy powders, in addition to 

pure titanium powder.  We also produce some alloy 

powder products using a low-cost manufacturing 

method we developed (the Premix process), which are 

currently marketed for use in medical applications.

Photograph 2  Electron Microscope Image of Titanium Powder

SiO (Barrier Film)

Figure 1   Structure of a Lithium-Ion Rechargeable Battery

(the negative electrode stores lithium ions when charged)

Titanium Powder
(Hydride-dehydride Process)

Spherical Titanium Powder
(Gas Atomization Method)
Trade name／TILOP

50μm100μm
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Operating Results (Fiscal Year)

  Net Sales

  Operating Income

  Ordinary Income

  Net Income

Financial Position (As of Fiscal Year-end)

  Total Assets

  Total Equity

Per Share Information

  Total Equity Per Share

  Net Income Per Share

  Cash Dividends Per Share

Financial Indicator

  Equity Ratio

  Return on Sales (ROS)

  Return on Assets (ROA)

  Return on Equity (ROE)

(Millions of Yen）

(Millions of Yen）

(Millions of Yen）

(Millions of Yen）

(Millions of Yen）

(Millions of Yen）

(Yen)

(Yen)

(Yen)

（％）

（％）

（％）

（％）

Fiscal 2007
(Year ended March 2008)

Fiscal 2006
(Year ended March 2007)

Fiscal 2008
(Year ended March 2009)

 53,635

20,962

20,463

11,500

72,320

42,274

1,148.77

312.50

80

58.5

38.2

31.6

30.4

Fiscal 2010
(Year ended March 2011)

33,758

-4,320

-5,012

-4,173

125,489

41,050

1,115.51

-113.41

10

32.7

-14.8

-4.6

-9.6

Fiscal 2009
(Year ended March 2010)

 52,089

14,694

14,173

8,248

96,930

47,251

1,284.03

224.13

80

48.7

27.2

16.7

18.4

 31,908

1,564

435

124

94,281

45,488

1,236.11

3.38

15

48.2

1.4

0.5

0.3

 43,248

15,899

15,840

9,287

57,037

33,295

904.77

252.38

75

58.4

36.6

30.6

31.4

※1 Ordinary income is the income resulting from the year’s recurring business activities, equal to the sum of operating income and
       nonoperating income minus nonoperating expenses.
※2 The company carried out a two-for-one stock split that came into effect on October 1, 2006.

※2

※2

※2

Financial Highlights

※1
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Under the slogan “preserve our precious Earth for our 

children and grandchildren,” OTC has made environmental 

protection one of our top management priorities. Our 

aggressive measures include creating environmentally 

friendly products, and reducing the environmental burden 

during production. 

We have established and are working toward targets to 

alleviate the environmental impact arising from production 

activities, including energy conservation, waste reduction 

(based on the 3Rs: Reduce, Reuse and Recycle), and 

greenhouse gas emission control. Greenhouse gas 

reduction efforts take fiscal 1990 as a starting point, with 

the objective of achieving a 10% reduction (by basic unit) 

per ton of titanium products.

  As for waste water, our goal is not to increase the amount 

by implementing the 3Rs, even if the production quantity 

increases.

ISO 14001 Certification
We promote environmental activities based 
on our basic environmental protection 
policies. We received ISO14001 
certification at the Amagasaki Plant in 1999 
and at the Kishiwada Works in 2010.

All of our employees perform various tasks in accordance 

with our environmental policies by keeping environmental 

issues in mind. Internal environmental preservation activities 

include separate collection of waste, recycling of paper and 

containers, eco-friendly purchasing, participation in local 

environmental preservation activit ies, and energy 

conservation with our plants’ lighting fixtures (replacing light 

bulbs with LEDs, etc.).

  Some of our facilities have rooftop gardens that are 

expected to be effective in conserving energy and purifying 

the air. The area covered by such facilities has exceeded 

5,900 square meters. In addition, the area covered by walls 

with greenery increased from 77 square meters last year to 

543 square meters this year.

  At the Kishiwada Works, solar panels have been installed 

to effectively utilize natural energy.

  Taking the current social situation into consideration, we 

are actively striving to save on electricity.

Registry Number

JQA-EM0386

Rooftop Gardening (Amagasaki Plant) Solar Panels（Kishiwada Works）

Environmental Preservation

Basic Policy on Environmental Preservation

Environmental Performance of Products

Environmental Measures at the 
Production Stage

Other Environmental Preservation Measures

Our major products, titanium and polycrystalline silicon, are 

themselves materials that help preserve the global 

environment.

  By improving the fuel efficiency of aircraft, titanium 

contributes to energy savings. 

In recent years, with aircraft weight reduction becoming a 

more pressing issue, titanium has also been widely used for 

metal fasteners (bolts, nuts, rivets, etc.), seat rails and body 

frames, again boosting fuel efficiency by cutting aircraft 

weight.  The latest aircraft models use more titanium than 

conventional models. 

  Titanium is utilized as a high-durability construction 

material, and finds various other applications that utilize its 

unique properties to contribute to global environmental 

preservation.

  As for polycrystalline silicon, we contribute to the reduction 

of greenhouse gases by supplying it in various settings.

  Energy (electricity and fuel gas) used for manufacturing 

titanium and polycrystalline silicon products is temporarily 

recorded to gauge the environmental impact. However, the 

more our products are used, the greater the contributions 

made to environmental preservation because, as stated 

earlier, they are products that reflect a high level of 

environmental consciousness and their use will lead to 

energy savings and prevent global warming.  We also reuse 

nearly all of the by-products generated during the production 

process using a closed reuse loop system.
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Corporate Governance／
Compliance Risk Management

OTC aims to continue building its corporate value 
by streamlining its management and ensuring 
transparency and corporate soundness, while 
gaining the trust of and providing satisfaction to 
customers, shareholders, regional communities, 
employees and all other stakeholders.
  As for the compliance system, the Compliance 
and Risk Management Committee has been 
established to implement management practices 
that comply with laws and social obligations, to 
take preventative measures for risks surrounding 
our businesses, and to make decisions and 
respond when incidents occur in a quick and 
appropriate manner.
  The Board of Directors is made up of eight 
directors with extensive knowledge of the 
Company’ s operations, and is responsible for 
maintaining and improving management efficiency. 
The Company employs a corporate auditing 
system comprising five corporate auditors, three of 
whom are external.  With the strong auditing 
functions forming part of the system, the Company 
maintains and reinforces its management 
transparency and corporate soundness.

In fiscal 2002, OTC established the Corporate Activity Rules, 
which state the commitment of our board members and 
employees to complying with the laws of all countries, 
international rules and their underlying philosophies. The 
Company has also established a Corporate and Risk 
Management Committee chaired by the president and 
director.  The Committee monitors the Company’ s legal 
compliance and the corporate response to legal reforms.   
  We also set up a Compliance Helpline to gather 
constructive suggestions and opinions from officers and 
employees on compliance matters that may seriously affect 
confidence in the Company.  Moreover, the Company 
publishes a Compliance Manual succinctly detailing the 
basic policies to be observed by officers and employees.
  In addition, OTC considers it important to appropriately 
manage the diverse risks inherent in the Company’ s 
operations to continually maximize corporate value in the 
face of major changes in the operating environment. The 
Board of Directors fully investigates and takes action on 
critical management risks that could interfere with 
operational plans or the medium-term management plan.

Advice

Risk-related information Monitoring

Appointments and dismissals Appointments
and dismissals

Appointments
and dismissals

Reports and
proposals

Resolutions and
supervision

Proposals Reports Audits

Deliberation
Audits

Audits

Accounting
audit

Collaboration

Execution of Operations
Corporate Lawyer

Audit Office

General Shareholders Meeting

Compliance and Risk Management Committee
(Members: Directors, Corporate Auditors and General Managers)

Headquarters and Amagasaki Plant

Kishiwada Works

Tokyo Office

Conceptual Diagram of Business Management and Auditing System

Compliance and Risk Management Efforts for Fiscal 2010

Board of Directors Board of Corporate Auditors

External Accounting Auditor

■Revision of the Risk Survey List
　• We conducted regular reviews of the Risk Survey List, which is 

compiled by each division.
　• Identification status of risks, current important issues, and future 

response schedules were included.

■Meetings of the Compliance and Risk Management Committee
　１．Policies
　• Monitor the status of legal compliance and of each division’s reporting 

activities based on the Risk Survey List.
　２．Agenda
　• Overall examination of management risks
　• Promoting the formulation of the Business Continuity Plan
　• Review of divisions responsible for laws related to our company and 

creation of rules to make law revisions known.
　• Response to the High-pressure Gas Safety Law for polycrystalline silicon

■Compliance Training
　　Theme: Basic concept at the time of execution of contracts
　　Speaker: Corporate lawyer
　　Target: Officers and managers

■Compliance and Human Rights Education Activities
　•We conducted position-specific educational programs targeting managers 

on promotion, employees on appointment and new company recruits. 
　•The Company raised awareness and publicized the Compliance Help Line 

widely by issuing in-house bulletins.

■Reinforcement of Health and Safety Management
　•OTC enhanced its health and safety pol icies ( including health 

management initiatives such as passive smoking prevention measures).
　•Board members and employees were informed of legal revisions.

■Implementation of Information Security Measures
　•We carried out ongoing data leakage countermeasures.

General meetings on 
important issues 

facing business management

Corporate Governance

Compliance/Risk Management
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Balance Sheets
March 31, 2011 and 2010

20102011 2011
CURRENT ASSETS:

Cash and cash equivalents
Short-term investment (Note 3)
Receivables:

Trade notes
Trade accounts (Note 14)
Others
Allowance for doubtful receivables

Inventories (Notes 2.c and 4)
Deferred tax assets (Note 9)
Prepaid expenses and other  

Total current assets

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (Notes 2.e and 2.j):
Land
Buildings and structures
Machinery and equipment (Note 12)
Furniture and fixtures
Construction in progress

Total
Accumulated depreciation

Net property, plant and equipment

INVESTMENTS AND OTHER ASSETS:
Investment securities (Note 3)
Deferred tax assets (Note 9)
Prepaid pension cost (Note 6)
Other assets

Total investments and other assets

TOTAL

See notes to financial statements.

$ 67,530

265
163,807
13,048

(24)
132,988
32,325
2,603

412,542

196,133
272,446

1,255,964
12,506
29,602

1,766,651
(709,085)

1,057,566

3,747
13,867
9,687

14,507
41,808

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

$   1,511,916

¥      2,621
100

1
10,407

198
(2)

12,994
591
193

27,103

16,279
18,759
64,765
1,013

12,630
113,446
(48,222)
65,224

274
424
808
448

1,954

¥    94,281

¥    5,605

22
13,596
1,083

(2)
11,038
2,683

216
34,241

16,279
22,613

104,245
1,038
2,457

146,632
(58,854)
87,778

311
1,151

804
1,204
3,470

¥    125,489

ASSETS

Millions of Yen
Thousands of

U.S. Dollars (Note 1)
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20102011 2011
CURRENT LIABILITIES: 

Short-term bank loans (Note 5)
Payables:

Trade notes
Trade accounts
Construction
Others

Income taxes payable
Accrued expenses
Current portion of lease obligations (Notes 2.j and 12)
Other 

Total current liabilities
       
LONG-TERM LIABILITIES:

Long-term debt (Note 5)
Liability for retirement benefits (Note 6)
Long-term lease obligations (Notes 2.j and 12)
Asset retirement obligations (Notes 2.h and 7)
Other (Note 2.g)

Total long-term liabilities

COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENT LIABILITIES
(Notes 12 and 13)

EQUITY (Note 8):
Common stock, authorized, 125,760,000 shares; issued, 
36,800,000 shares in 2011 and 2010
Capital surplus - Additional paid-in capital
Retained earnings:

Legal reserve
Unappropriated

Unrealized gain on available-for-sale securities
Deferred loss on derivatives under hedge accounting 
Treasury stock - at cost:
1,194 shares in 2011 and 1,127 shares in 2010

Total equity

TOTAL

$      113,253

 6,060
56,265

203,639
2,735

301
11,084
12,843

434
406,614

547,590
14,133
30,265
13,795
4,940

610,723

105,301
107,747

458
282,651

1,410
(2,868)

(120)
494,579

$      1,511,916

¥      8,900

226
2,069
6,358

411
21

738
1,037

33
19,793

23,950
1,063
3,578

409
29,000

8,740
8,943

38
27,910

95
(228)

(10)
45,488

¥    94,281

¥      9,400

503
4,670

16,902
227
25

920
1,066

36
33,749

45,450
1,173
2,512
1,145

410
50,690

 

8,740
 8,943

 38
 23,460

 117
 (238)

 
(10)

 41,050

¥      125,489

LIABILITIES AND EQUITY

Millions of Yen
Thousands of

U.S. Dollars (Note 1)
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20102011 2011
NET SALES (Note 14)

COST OF SALES (Note 10)
Gross profit

SELLING, GENERAL AND ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES (Note 10)
Operating income (loss)

OTHER INCOME (EXPENSES): 
Interest and dividend income 
Interest expense
Loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment
Foreign exchange gain (loss) - net
Subsidy from the Prefecture and certain public corporation
Depreciation of idle assets (Note 2.e)
Syndicate loan fee
Loss on adjustment for change of accounting standard
 for asset retirement obligations (Note 2.h)
Loss on shut-down of production facilities (Note 11)
Other - net 

Other expenses - net

INCOME (LOSS) BEFORE INCOME TAXES

INCOME TAXES (Note 9):
Current
Deferred

Total income taxes
NET INCOME (LOSS)

PER SHARE OF COMMON STOCK (Note 2): 
Basic net income (loss)
Cash dividends applicable to the year

See notes to financial statements. 

$  406,723
 

 400,843
 5,880

 
 57,928

 (52,048)
 
 

72
(6,386)
(7,277)
(3,988)
1,265

(1,892)
(48)

 
(3,181)

(13,482)
2,628

(32,289)

(84,337)
 
 

(0)
(34,060)
(34,060)

$  (50,277)

$        (1.37)
0.12

¥  31,908

25,883
6,025

4,461
1,564

5
(549)
(65)
175
94

(868)
(69)

83
(1,194)

370

77
169
246

¥       124

¥       3.38
15.00

¥ 33,758

 33,270
488

4,808
(4,320)

 6
 (530)
 (604)
 (331)
 105

 (157)
 (4)

(264)

(1,119)
 218

 (2,680)

(7,000)

(0)
 (2,827)

(2,827)
¥       (4,173)

¥       (113.41)
10.00

Yen U.S. Dollars

Millions of Yen
Thousands of

U.S. Dollars (Note 1)

Statements of Operations
Years Ended March 31, 2011 and 2010
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20102011 2011
NET SALES (Note 14)

COST OF SALES (Note 10)
Gross profit

SELLING, GENERAL AND ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES (Note 10)
Operating income (loss)

OTHER INCOME (EXPENSES): 
Interest and dividend income 
Interest expense
Loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment
Foreign exchange gain (loss) - net
Subsidy from the Prefecture and certain public corporation
Depreciation of idle assets (Note 2.e)
Syndicate loan fee
Loss on adjustment for change of accounting standard
 for asset retirement obligations (Note 2.h)
Loss on shut-down of production facilities (Note 11)
Other - net 

Other expenses - net

INCOME (LOSS) BEFORE INCOME TAXES

INCOME TAXES (Note 9):
Current
Deferred

Total income taxes
NET INCOME (LOSS)

PER SHARE OF COMMON STOCK (Note 2): 
Basic net income (loss)
Cash dividends applicable to the year

See notes to financial statements. 

$  406,723
 

 400,843
 5,880

 
 57,928

 (52,048)
 
 

72
(6,386)
(7,277)
(3,988)
1,265

(1,892)
(48)

 
(3,181)

(13,482)
2,628

(32,289)

(84,337)
 
 

(0)
(34,060)
(34,060)

$  (50,277)

$        (1.37)
0.12

¥  31,908

25,883
6,025

4,461
1,564

5
(549)
(65)
175
94

(868)
(69)

83
(1,194)

370

77
169
246

¥       124

¥       3.38
15.00

¥ 33,758

 33,270
488

4,808
(4,320)

 6
 (530)
 (604)
 (331)
 105

 (157)
 (4)

(264)

(1,119)
 218

 (2,680)

(7,000)

(0)
 (2,827)

(2,827)
¥       (4,173)

¥       (113.41)
10.00

Yen U.S. Dollars

Millions of Yen
Thousands of

U.S. Dollars (Note 1)

Statements of Operations
Years Ended March 31, 2011 and 2010
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Statements of Changes in Equity
Years Ended March 31, 2011 and 2010

BALANCE, APRIL 1, 2009

Net income
Cash dividends, ¥47.5 per share
Purchase of treasury stock
Net change in the year

BALANCE, MARCH 31, 2010

Net loss
Cash dividends, ¥7.5 per share
Purchase of treasury stock
Net change in the year

BALANCE, MARCH 31, 2011

BALANCE, MARCH 31, 2010

Net loss
Cash dividends, $0.09 per share
Purchase of treasury stock
Net change in the year 

BALANCE, MARCH 31, 2011

See notes to financial statements.

¥  8,943

8,943

¥  8,943

¥  8,740

8,740

¥  8,740

36,798,918

(45)

36,798,873

(67)

36,798,806

¥  35

60
95

22
¥  117

¥  29,533

124
(1,747)

27,910

 (4,173)
 (277)

¥  23,460

¥  38

38

¥  38

¥  47,251

124
(1,747)

(1)
(139)

45,488

(4,173)
(277)

(0)
12

¥  41,050

¥  (9)

(1)

(10)

(0)

¥  (10)

¥  (29)

(199)
(228)

(10)
¥  (238)

$  107,747

$  107,747

$  105,301

$  105,301

$   1,145

265
$   1,410

$   336,265

(50,277)
(3,337)

$   282,651

$   458

$   458

$   548,048

(50,277)
(3,337)

(0)
145

$   494,579

$  (120)

(0)

$   (120)

$   (2,748)

(120)
$   (2,868)

Millions of Yen

Thousands of U.S. Dollars (Note 1)Thousands of U.S. Dollars (Note 1)

Millions of YenThousands

Capital Surplus Retained Earnings

Outstanding Number of
Shares of

Common Stock

Unrealized Gain
on Available-for-
sale Securities

Deferred Loss on
Derivatives under

Hedge Accounting
Common

Stock
Additional Paid-in

Capital Legal Reserve
Treasury

Stock Total EquityUnappropriated

Capital Surplus Retained Earnings

Unrealized Gain
on Available-for-
sale Securities

Deferred Loss on
Derivatives under

Hedge Accounting
Common

Stock
Additional Paid-in

Capital Legal Reserve
Treasury

Stock Total EquityUnappropriated

3433



20102011 2011
OPERATING ACTIVITIES:

Income (loss) before income taxes 
Adjustments for:

Income taxes - paid
Income taxes - refunded
Depreciation and amortization
Loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment
Loss on adjustment for change of accounting standard
 for asset retirement obligations
Changes in assets and liabilities:

Decrease (increase) in receivables - trade
Decrease (increase) in inventories
Increase (decrease) in payables - trade
Increase in interest payable
Increase in liability for retirement benefits

Other - net
Total adjustments
Net cash provided by operating activities

INVESTING ACTIVITIES:
Purchases of property, plant and equipment
Other

Net cash used in investing activities

FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
Proceeds from short-term debt
Proceeds from long-term debt
Repayments of long-term debt
Repayments of lease obligations
Purchase of treasury stock
Dividends paid

Net cash provided by financing activities

FOREIGN CURRENCY TRANSLATION ADJUSTMENTS
 ON CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN CASH AND CASH
 EQUIVALENTS
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, BEGINNING OF YEAR
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, END OF YEAR
NON-CASH INVESTING AND FINANCING ACTIVITIES - 

Liabilities increased by applying the accounting standard
 for asset retirement obligations

See notes to financial statements.

$  (84,337)

(458)
2,241

134,217
7,277

3,181
 

(38,675)
23,566
34,675

12
1,169

(16,073)
151,132
66,795

(273,000)
(7,578)

(280,578)

6,024
259,036

(12,494)
(0)

(3,253)
249,313

(783)

34,747
32,783

$  67,530

$  13,795

¥  370

(1,719)
43

11,772
65

3,325
(1,072)
(2,906)

21
12

266
9,807

10,177

(16,425)
(59)

(16,484 )

10,000
(1,500)
(1,008)

(1)
 (1,751)
 5,740

(14)

(581)
3,302

¥  2,721

¥  (7,000)

(38)
186

11,140
604

264

(3,210)
1,956
2,878

1
97

(1,334)
12,544
5,544

(22,659)
(629)

(23,288)

500
21,500

(1,037)
(0)

(270)
20,693

(65)

2,884
2,721

¥  5,605

¥  1,145

Millions of Yen
Thousands of

U.S. Dollars (Note 1)

Statements of Cash Flows
Years Ended March 31, 2011 and 2010
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to readers outside Japan.  In addition, certain 
reclassifications have been made in the 2010 financial 
statements to conform to the classifications used in 
2011.

The financial statements are stated in Japanese yen, 
the currency of the country in which the Company is 
incorporated and operates.  The translations of 
Japanese yen amounts into U.S. dollar amounts are 
included solely for the convenience of readers outside 
Japan and have been made at the rate of ¥83 to $1, the 
approximate rate of exchange at March 31, 2011.  Such 
translations should not be construed as representations 
that the Japanese yen amounts could be converted into 
U.S. dollars at that or any other rate.

The accompanying financial statements have been 
prepared from the accounts maintained by OSAKA 
Titanium technologies Co., Ltd. (the "Company") in 
accordance with the provisions set forth in the Japanese 
Financial Instruments and Exchange Act and its related 
accounting regulations and in conformity with accounting 
principles generally accepted in Japan ("Japanese 
GAAP"), which are different in certain respects as to 
application and disclosure requirements of International 
Financial Reporting Standards.

  
In preparing these financial statements, certain 

reclassifications and rearrangements have been made to 
the Company's financial statements issued domestically 
in order to present them in a form which is more familiar 

- Short-term investment and investment securities 
are classified and accounted for, depending on 
management's intent, as follows:  i) trading securities, 
which are held for the purpose of earning capital 
gains in the near term, are reported at fair value, and 
the related unrealized gains and losses are included 
in earnings, ii) held-to-maturity debt securities, which 
are expected to be held to maturity with the positive 
intent and ability to hold to maturity are reported at 
amortized cost, and iii) available-for-sale securities, 
which are not classified as either of the 
aforementioned securities, are reported at fair value, 
with unrealized gains and losses, net of applicable 
taxes, reported in a separate component of equity.

Non-marketable available-for-sale securities are 
stated at cost determined by the moving-average 
method.  For other than temporary declines in fair 
value, investment securities are reduced to net 
realizable value by a charge to income.

a.  Non-consolidation - The financial statements do not 
include the accounts of subsidiaries because the 
Company does not have any subsidiaries.

b.  Cash Equivalents - Cash equivalents are short-term 
investments that are readily convertible into cash and 
that are exposed to insignificant risk of changes in 
value.  Cash equivalents include time deposits, 
certificate of deposits, commercial paper and bond 
funds, all of which mature or become due within three 
months of the date of acquisition.

c.  Inventories - Inventories held for sale in the ordinary 
course of business are measured at the lower of cost 
or net selling value, which is defined as the selling 
price less additional estimated manufacturing costs 
and estimated direct selling expenses.  Replacement 
cost may be used in place of net selling value, if 
appropriate. 

 
d.  Short-term Investment and Investment Securities 

 2.SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

1.BASIS OF PRESENTING FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Notes to Financial Statements
Years Ended March 31, 2011 and 2010
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Notes to Financial Statements
Years Ended March 31, 2011 and 2010

obligations and plan assets at the balance sheet 
date.

In June 2006, the Company terminated retirement 
benefits to directors and corporate auditors.  The 
balance of benefits granted prior to the termination 
date in the amount of ¥10 million ($120 thousand) 
and ¥25 million is included in other long-term 
liabilities as of March 31, 2011 and 2010, respectively.

h.  Asset Retirement Obligations - In March 2008, the 
Accounting Standards Board of Japan (the "ASBJ") 
published the accounting standard for asset 
retirement obligations, ASBJ Statement No. 18 
"Accounting Standard for Asset Retirement 
Obligations" and ASBJ Guidance No. 21 "Guidance 
on Accounting Standard for Asset Retirement 
Obligations".  Under this accounting standard, an 
asset retirement obligation is defined as a legal 
obligation imposed either by law or contract that 
results from the acquisition, construction, 
development and the normal operation of a tangible 
fixed asset and is associated with the retirement of 
such tangible fixed asset.  The asset retirement 
obligation is recognized as the sum of the discounted 
cash flows required for the future asset retirement 
and is recorded in the period in which the obligation 
is incurred if a reasonable estimate can be made.  If 
a reasonable estimate of the asset retirement 
obligation cannot be made in the period the asset 
retirement obligation is incurred, the liability should 
be recognized when a reasonable estimate of asset 
retirement obligation can be made.  Upon initial 
recognition of a liability for an asset retirement 
obligation, an asset retirement cost is capitalized by 
increasing the carrying amount of the related fixed 
asset by the amount of the liability.  The asset 
retirement cost is subsequently allocated to expense 
through depreciation over the remaining useful life of 
the asset.  Over time, the liability is accreted to its 
present value each period.  Any subsequent 
revisions to the timing or the amount of the original 
estimate of undiscounted cash flows are reflected as 

e.  Property, Plant and Equipment - Property, plant 
and equipment are stated at cost.  Depreciation 
(including lease assets that are deemed to transfer 
ownership) is computed by the declining-balance 
method, while the straight-line method is applied to 
buildings acquired after April 1, 1998 and machinery 
and equipment of the polycrystalline silicon 
production factory in Kishiwada, at rates based on 
the estimated useful lives of the assets prescribed by 
Japanese Corporate Tax Law.  Lease assets that are 
not deemed to transfer ownership are depreciated by 
the straight-line method over the respective lease 
period.

In addition, the carrying amounts of idle assets 
included in machinery and equipment was ¥1,382 
million at March 31, 2010, and the related 
depreciation was included in other expense.  For this 
fiscal year, the operations of idle assets have been 
resumed.

f.  Long-lived Assets - The Company reviews its 
long-lived assets for impairment whenever events or 
changes in circumstance indicate the carrying 
amount of an asset or asset group may not be 
recoverable.  An impairment loss would be 
recognized if the carrying amount of an asset or 
asset group exceeds the sum of the undiscounted 
future cash flows expected to result from the 
continued use and eventual disposition of the asset 
or asset group.  The impairment loss would be 
measured as the amount by which the carrying 
amount of the asset exceeds its recoverable amount, 
which is the higher of the discounted cash flows from 
the continued use and eventual disposition of the 
asset or the net selling price at disposition.

g.  Liability for Retirement Benefits -Employees who 
retire at or after age 60 are entitled to their benefits in 
the form of an annuity.  The funds for the annuity 
payments are entrusted to an outside trustee.

The Company accounts for the liability for 
retirement benefits based on projected benefit 

37



transition date and do not transfer ownership of the 
leased property to the lessee as operating lease 
transactions.  

All other leases are accounted for as operating 
leases.

k.  Income Taxes - The provision for income taxes is 
computed based on the pretax income included in 
the statements of operations.  The asset and liability 
approach is used to recognize deferred tax assets 
and liabilities for the expected future tax 
consequences of temporary differences between the 
carrying amounts and the tax bases of assets and 
liabilities.  Deferred taxes are measured by applying 
currently enacted tax laws to the temporary 
differences.

l.  Foreign Currency Transactions - All short-term and 
long-term monetary receivables and payables 
denominated in foreign currencies are translated into 
Japanese yen at the exchange rates at the balance 
sheet date.  However, short-term and long-term 
receivables and payables covered by forward 
exchange contracts are translated at the contract 
rates.

m. Derivatives and Hedging Activities - The Company 
uses derivative financial instruments to manage its 
exposures to fluctuations in foreign exchange and 
interest rates.  Foreign exchange forward contracts 
and interest rate swaps are utilized by the Company 
to reduce foreign currency exchange and interest rate 
risks.  The Company does not enter into derivatives 
for trading or speculative purposes.

Derivative financial instruments and foreign 
currency transactions are classified and accounted 
for as follows:  a) all derivatives are recognized as 
either assets or liabilities and measured at fair value, 
and gains or losses on derivative transactions are 
recognized in the income statement and b) for 
derivatives used for hedging purposes, if derivatives 
qualify for hedge accounting because of high 

an increase or a decrease in the carrying amount of 
the liability and the capitalized amount of the related 
asset retirement cost.  This standard was effective for 
fiscal years beginning on or after April 1, 2010.

The Company applied this accounting standard 
effective April 1, 2010.  The effect of this change was 
to increase operating loss by ¥50 million ($602 
thousand) and loss before income taxes by ¥314 
million ($3,783 thousand) for the year ended March 
31, 2011.

i.  Research and Development Costs - Research and 
development costs are charged to income as 
incurred.

j.  Leases - In March 2007, the ASBJ issued ASBJ 
Statement No. 13, "Accounting Standard for Lease 
Transactions", which revised the previous accounting 
standard for lease transactions issued in June 1993.  
The revised accounting standard for lease 
transactions was effective for fiscal years beginning 
on or after April 1, 2008.

Under the previous accounting standard, finance 
leases that were deemed to transfer ownership of the 
leased property to the lessee were to be capitalized.  
However, other finance leases were permitted to be 
accounted for as operating lease transactions if 
certain "as if capitalized" information was disclosed in 
the note to the lessee's financial statements.  The 
revised accounting standard requires that all finance 
lease transactions should be capitalized to recognize 
lease assets and lease obligations in the balance 
sheet.  In addition, the accounting standard permits 
leases which existed at the transition date and do not 
transfer ownership of the leased property to the 
lessee to be accounted for as operating lease 
transactions with certain "as if capitalized" 
information disclosed in the notes to the lessee's 
financial statements.

The Company applied the revised accounting 
standard effective April 1, 2008.  In addition, the 
Company accounted for leases which existed at the 
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treatments under this standard and guidance are as 
follows;
(1) Changes in Accounting Policies

When a new accounting policy is applied with 
revision of accounting standards, the new policy is 
applied retrospectively unless revised accounting 
standards include specific transitional provisions.  
When the revised accounting standards include 
specific transitional provisions, an entity shall 
comply with the specific transitional provisions.  

(2) Changes in Presentations
When the presentation of financial statements is 
changed, prior period financial statements are 
reclassified in accordance with the new 
presentation. 

(3) Changes in Accounting Estimates
A change in an accounting estimate is accounted 
for in the period of the change if the change 
affects that period only, and is accounted for 
prospectively if the change affects both the period 
of the change and future periods.

(4) Corrections of Prior Period Errors
When an error in prior period financial statements 
is discovered, those statements are restated.
This accounting standard and the guidance are 
applicable to accounting changes and corrections 
of prior period errors which are made from the 
beginning of the fiscal year that begins on or after 
April 1, 2011.

correlation and effectiveness between the hedging 
instruments and the hedged items, gains or losses on 
derivatives are deferred until maturity of the hedged 
transactions.

The foreign currency forward contracts are utilized 
to hedge foreign currency exposures in procurement 
of raw materials from overseas suppliers.  Trade 
payables denominated in foreign currencies are 
translated at the contracted rates if the forward 
contracts qualify for hedge accounting.

 
Interest rate swaps are utilized to hedge interest 

rate exposures of long-term debt.  These swaps 
which qualify for hedge accounting are measured at 
market value at the balance sheet date, and the 
unrealized gains or losses are deferred until maturity 
as deferred gain (loss) under hedge accounting in a 
separate component of equity.

n.  Per Share Information -Basic net income per share 
is computed by dividing net income available to 
common shareholders by the weighted-average 
number of common shares outstanding for the 
period, retroactively adjusted for stock splits.

The computation of net income per common share 
is based on the weighted average number of shares 
outstanding.  The weighted average number of 
common shares outstanding used in the computation 
were 36,798,841 and 36,798,884 for the fiscal years 
ended March 31, 2011 and 2010, respectively.

Cash dividends per share presented in the 
accompanying statements of operations are 
dividends applicable to the respective years including 
dividends to be paid after the end of the year.

o.  New Accounting Pronouncements
     Accounting Changes and Error Corrections -  In 

December 2009, ASBJ issued ASBJ Statement No. 
24 "Accounting Standard for Accounting Changes 
and Error Corrections" and ASBJ Guidance No. 24 
"Guidance on Accounting Standard for Accounting 
Changes and Error Corrections".  Accounting 

Notes to Financial Statements
Years Ended March 31, 2011 and 2010
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20102011 2011
Current:       

Commercial paper - ABCP
Total

Non-current:
Marketable equity securities:

Kobe Steel, Ltd., a principal shareholder
Other

Non-marketable equity securities
Total

Short-term investment and investment securities as of March 31, 2011 and 2010 consisted of the following:

The carrying amounts and aggregate fair values of short-term investment and investment securities at 

March 31, 2011 and 2010 were as follows:

$  1,627
2,072

48
$  3,747

¥  100
¥  100

¥  125
145

4
¥  274

¥  135
172

4
¥  311

Millions of Yen
Thousands of
U.S. Dollars

2011

Cost
Unrealized

Gains
Unrealized

Losses
Fair 
Value

Securities classified as: 
Available-for-sale:

Equity securities
Held-to-maturity

Securities classified as: 
Available-for-sale:

Equity securities
Held-to-maturity

Securities classified as: 
Available-for-sale:

Equity securities
Held-to-maturity

¥  196 ¥  307¥  111

Millions of Yen

2010

Cost
Unrealized

Gains
Unrealized

Losses
Fair 
Value

¥  159 ¥  270
100

¥  111
100

Millions of Yen

2011

Cost
Unrealized

Gains
Unrealized

Losses
Fair 
Value

$  2,362 $  3,699$  1,337

Thousands of U.S. Dollars

3.SHORT-TERM INVESTMENT AND INVESTMENT SECURITIES
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On December 30, 2008, the Company entered into a ¥11,950 million ($143,976 thousand) long-term syndicate loan 

agreement with banks.  This agreement contains the following financial covenants relating to the financial position 

and operating results of the Company:  that the amount of net assets at the end of each fiscal year shall not be less 

than ¥31,800 million ($383,133 thousand) or shall not be less than 75% of net assets of the latest financial year, 

whenever greater, and the Company shall not record a loss from ordinary operations for consecutive two years.

 On July 31, 2009, the Company entered into a ¥10,000 million ($120,482 thousand) long-term syndicate loan 

agreement with banks.  This agreement contains the following financial covenants relating to the financial position 

and operating results of the Company:  that the amount of net assets at the end of each fiscal year shall not be less 

than ¥35,500 million ($427,711 thousand) or shall not be less than 75% of net assets of the latest financial year, 

whenever greater, and the Company shall not record a loss from ordinary operations for consecutive two years.

20102011 2011
Finished products
Work in process
Raw materials and supplies
Total

$    56,024
31,663
45,301

$  132,988

¥    7,674
1,634
3,686

¥  12,994

¥    4,650
2,628
3,760

¥  11,038

Millions of Yen
Thousands of
U.S. Dollars

Inventories at March 31, 2011 and 2010 consisted of the following:

Annual maturities of long-term debt at March 31, 2011 were as follows:

4.INVENTORIES

20102011 2011
Loans from banks due serially to 2015 with interest
rates ranging from 0.3% to 1.7% (2011) and from
1.1% to 1.7% (2010) - Unsecured
Less current portion
Long-term debt, less current portion

$  547,590

$  547,590

¥  23,950

¥  23,950

¥  45,450

¥  45,450

Millions of Yen
Thousands of
U.S. Dollars

Year Ending March 31
2013
2014
2015
Total

$  222,891
204,217
120,482

$  547,590

¥   18,500
 16,950

10,000
¥  45,450

Millions of Yen
Thousands of
U.S. Dollars

Short-term bank loans at March 31, 2011 and 2010 consisted of notes to banks and bank overdrafts.

The weighted average interest rate of short-term loans at March 31, 2011 and 2010 was 0.6% and 1.1%, respectively.

Long-term debt at March 31, 2011 and 2010 consisted of the following:

5.SHORT-TERM BANK LOANS AND LONG-TERM DEBT

Notes to Financial Statements
Years Ended March 31, 2011 and 2010
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20102011 2011
Projected benefit obligation
Fair value of plan assets
Unrecognized prior service cost
Unrecognized actuarial loss
Prepaid pension cost
Net liability

The liability (asset) for employees' retirement benefits at March 31, 2011 and 2010 consisted of the following:

$  (39,904)
25,470
2,060
7,928

(9,687)
 $  (14,133)

¥  (3,156)
2,069

183
649

(808)
¥  (1,063)

¥  (3,312)
2,114

171
658

 (804)
¥  (1,173)

Millions of Yen
Thousands of
U.S. Dollars

20102011 2011
Service cost
Interest cost
Expected return on plan assets
Amortization of prior service cost
Recognized actuarial loss
Net periodic benefit costs

The components of net periodic benefit costs are as follows:

$      2,289
759

(494)
145
614

$      3,313

¥       174
59

(38)
12
51

¥       258

¥      190
 63

 (41)
 12
 51

¥      275

Millions of Yen
Thousands of
U.S. Dollars

2011 2010
Discount rate
Expected rate of return on plan assets
Amortization period of prior service cost
Recognition period of actuarial gain/loss

Assumptions used for the years ended March 31, 2011 and 2010 are set forth as follows:

2.0%
2.0%

17 years
17 years

2.0%
2.0%

17 years
17 years

6.LIABILITY FOR RETIREMENT BENEFITS
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Balance at beginning of year
Reconciliation associated with passage of time
Balance at end of year

$    13,494
301

$    13,795

¥    1,120
25

¥    1,145

Millions of Yen
Thousands of
U.S. Dollars

The changes in asset retirement obligations for the year ended March 31, 2011 were as follows:

7.ASSET RETIREMENT OBLIGATIONS

Japanese companies are subject to the Companies Act of Japan (the "Companies Act").  The significant

provisions in the Companies Act that affect financial and accounting matters are summarized below:

8.EQUITY

additional paid-in capital (a component of capital 
surplus) depending on the equity account charged 
upon the payment of such dividends until the total of 
aggregate amount of legal reserve and additional 
paid-in capital equals 25% of the common stock.  
Under the Companies Act, the total amount of 
additional paid-in capital and legal reserve may be 
reversed without limitation.  The Companies Act also 
provides that common stock, legal reserve, additional 
paid-in capital, other capital surplus and retained 
earnings can be transferred among the accounts 
under certain conditions upon resolution of the 
shareholders.

(c) Treasury stock and treasury stock acquisition
     rights

The Companies Act also provides for companies to 
purchase treasury stock and dispose of such treasury 
stock by resolution of the Board of Directors.  The 
amount of treasury stock purchased cannot exceed 
the amount available for distribution to the 
shareholders which is determined by specific formula.

Under the Companies Act, stock acquisition rights 
are now presented as a separate component of 
equity.

 The Companies Act also provides that companies 
can purchase both treasury stock acquisition rights 
and treasury stock.  Such treasury stock acquisition 
rights are presented as a separate component of 
equity or deducted directly from stock acquisition 
rights.

(a) Dividends
Under the Companies Act, companies can pay 

dividends at any time during the fiscal year in addition 
to the year-end dividend upon resolution at the 
shareholders meeting.  For companies that meet 
certain criteria such as; (1) having the Board of 
Directors, (2) having independent auditors, (3) having 
the Board of Corporate Auditors, and (4) the term of 
service of the directors is prescribed as one year 
rather than two years of normal term by its articles of 
incorporation, the Board of Directors may declare 
dividends (except for dividends in kind) at any time 
during the fiscal year if the company has prescribed 
so in its articles of incorporation.  The Company 
meets all the above criteria.

Semiannual interim dividends may also be paid 
once a year upon resolution by the Board of Directors 
if the articles of incorporation of the company so 
stipulate.  The Companies Act provides certain 
limitations on the amounts available for dividends or 
the purchase of treasury stock.  The limitation is 
defined as the amount available for distribution to the 
shareholders, but the amount of net assets after 
dividends must be maintained at no less than ¥3 
million.

(b) Increases/decreases and transfer of common
     stock, reserve and surplus

The Companies Act requires that an amount equal to 
10% of dividends must be appropriated as a legal 
reserve (a component of retained earnings) or as 

Notes to Financial Statements
Years Ended March 31, 2011 and 2010

43



20102011 2011
Deferred tax assets (current):

Accrued bonus
Social insurance 
Loss on revaluation of inventories
Tax loss carryforwards
Other 

Net deferred tax assets (current)

Deferred tax assets (non-current):
Loss on revaluation of golf club membership
Liability for retirement benefits
Other long-term liabilities - terminated retirement 
benefit to directors and corporate auditors
Depreciation
Loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment
Asset retirement obligations
Tax loss carryforwards
Loss on deferred hedge
Other
Less valuation allowance

Total

Deferred tax liabilities (non-current):
Property, plant and equipment
 (Asset retirement obligations)
Unrealized holding gains on "Other securities"
Reserve for advanced depreciation of fixed assets

Total
Net deferred tax assets (non-current)

The Company is subject to Japanese national and local income taxes which, in the aggregate, resulted in

normal effective statutory tax rates of approximately 40.6% for the years ended March 31, 2011 and 2010.

The tax effects of significant temporary differences which resulted in deferred tax assets and liabilities at 

March 31, 2011 and 2010 are as follows:

$      2,024
277

8,795
21,205

24
          $    32,325

$         506
 1,807

 
48

 1,843
 1,590
 5,602
 6,169
 1,964

 735
 (807)

 $    19,457

 4,012
 964
 614

 5,590
$    13,867

¥       147
20

411

13
¥       591

¥         42
104

10
168

156
117
(73)

¥       524

65
35

100
¥       424

¥       168
23

730
1,760

2
¥   2,683

¥        42
150

4
153
132
465
512
163
61

(67)
 ¥   1,615

333
80
51

464
¥   1,151

Millions of Yen
Thousands of
U.S. Dollars

9.INCOME TAXES
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2010
Normal effective statutory tax rate
Expenses not deductible for income tax purposes
Tax credit for research and development costs
Tax on inhabitants per capita
Effect of amended return
Valuation allowance
Other - net
Actual effective tax rate

A reconciliation between the normal effective statutory tax rate and the actual effective tax rate reflected in the

accompanying statement of operations for the year ended March 31, 2010 was as follows:

The reconciliation of the difference between the normal effective statutory tax rate and the actual effective tax rate 

as of March 31, 2011 was not disclosed because the difference was not material.

40.6%
2.3

(5.8)
2.1
5.6

19.8
1.8

 66.4%

20102011 2011
Due within one year
Due after one year
Total

$     1,084
24,085

$   25,169

¥     6
20

¥   26

¥        90
1,999

¥   2,089

Millions of Yen
Thousands of
U.S. Dollars

On April 30, 2010, the Company identified an issue for which certain intermediate production facilities 

in the manufacturing of polycrystalline silicon did not comply with the High Pressure Gas Safety Act (the "Regulation").

  Therefore, the Company decided to temporarily shut down the related facilities for the necessary improvement 

to comply with the Regulation.  

  The Company resumed the operation of the facilities on August 24, 2010 when the improvement was completed. 

  The depreciation expense and certain fixed cost on the facilities during the shut-down period were classified 

as "Loss on shut-down of production facilities".

11.LOSS ON SHUT-DOWN OF PRODUCTION FACILITIES

The Company leases certain machinery, automotive equipment and other equipment.

Finance leases that are deemed to transfer ownership of the leased property to the Company are included in 

"Machinery and equipment" on the balance sheet as of March 31, 2011 and 2010.

  Total rental expenses for the years ended March 31, 2011 and 2010 were ¥252 million ($3,036 thousand) and 

¥259 million, respectively, including ¥3 million ($36 thousand) and ¥11 million of lease payments under 

finance leases, respectively.

  The minimum rental commitments under noncancellable operating leases were as follows:

12.LEASES

Research and development costs charged to income were ¥375 million ($4,518 thousand) and ¥584 million 

for the years ended March 31, 2011 and 2010, respectively.

10.RESEARCH AND DEVELOPMENT COSTS

Notes to Financial Statements
Years Ended March 31, 2011 and 2010
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Obligations under finance leases:

The amount of acquisition cost and obligations for finance leases include the imputed interest expense portion.

Depreciation expense and other information under finance leases:

The rental payments over the estimated useful period of land leases for which asset retirement obligations are 

recognized are included in the minimum rental commitments in 2011, when the Company adopted the accounting 

standard for asset retirement obligations (see Note 2.h).  

  Land leases for which asset retirement obligations are recognized are legally cancellable.  However, as they are 

unlikely to be cancelled due to the indispensable nature of the asset for the Company's business activities, they are 

considered substantially noncancellable leases, and therefore, the amount of the asset retirement obligations is 

included the above minimum rental commitments.

Pro forma information of leased property whose lease inception was before March 31, 2008

  As discussed in Note 2.i, the Company accounts for leases which existed at the transition date and which do not 

transfer ownership of the leased property to the lessee as operating lease transactions.  Pro forma information of 

such leases existing at the transition date, such as acquisition cost, accumulated depreciation, obligations under 

finance leases, depreciation expense, interest expense, on a "as if capitalized" basis for the years ended March 31, 

2011 and 2010 was as follows:

2011 2010

Automotive
Equipment Total

Other
Equipment

Automotive
Equipment Total

Other
Equipment

Automotive
Equipment Total

Other
Equipment

Acquisition cost
Accumulated depreciation
Net leased property

Acquisition cost
Accumulated depreciation
Net leased property

¥     6
(5)

¥     1

$    72
(60)

$    12

¥     6
(5)

¥     1

$    72
(60)

$    12

¥     6
(4)

¥     2

¥   30
(28)

¥     2

¥   36
(32)

¥     4

Millions of Yen

2011

Thousands of U.S. Dollars

20102011 2011
Due within one year
Due after one year
Total

$      12

$      12

¥         3
1

¥         4

¥         1

¥         1

Millions of Yen
Thousands of
U.S. Dollars

20102011 2011
Depreciation expense $      36¥       11¥        3

Millions of Yen
Thousands of
U.S. Dollars
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The depreciation expense disclosed above which is not reflected in the accompanying statements of operations, 

is computed by the straight-line method.

Interest expense is included in depreciation expense because interest expense is not material.

At March 31, 2011, the Company had the following contingent liabilities:

13.CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

In March 10, 2008, the ASBJ revised ASBJ Statement No. 10 "Accounting Standard for Financial Instruments" and 

issued ASBJ Guidance No. 19 "Guidance on Accounting Standard for Financial Instruments and Related Disclosures".  

This accounting standard and the guidance are applicable to financial instruments and related disclosures at the end of 

the fiscal years ending on or after March 31, 2010 with early adoption permitted from the beginning of the fiscal years 

ending before March 31, 2010.  The Group applied the revised accounting standard and the new guidance effective 

March 31, 2010.

(1) Policy for financial instruments
The Company uses financial instruments, mainly long-term debt including bank loans and lease obligations, based on its 
capital financing plan.  Cash surpluses, if any, are invested in low risk financial assets.  Short-term bank loans are used to 
fund its ongoing operations.  Derivatives are used, not for speculative purposes, but to manage exposure to financial risks 
as described in (2) below.

(2) Nature and extent of risks arising from financial instruments
Receivables such as trade notes and trade accounts are exposed to customer credit risk.  Although receivables in foreign 
currencies are exposed to the market risk of fluctuation in foreign currency exchange rates, the position, net of payables 
in foreign currencies, is hedged by using forward foreign currency contracts.  Short-term investment and investment 
securities, mainly held-to-maturity securities and equity instruments of customers and suppliers of the Company, are 
exposed to the risk of market price fluctuations.

Payment terms of payables, such as trade notes and trade accounts, are less than one year.  Although payables in 

Guarantees of bank loans of employees $      4,952¥     411

Millions of Yen
Thousands of
U.S. Dollars

Related party transactions are summarized below:

14.RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

20102011 2011
Sumitomo Metal Industries, Ltd., a principal shareholder:

Net sales
Accounts receivable

$  15,398
6,096

¥     897
287

¥   1,278
506

Millions of Yen
Thousands of
U.S. Dollars

15.FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND RELATED DISCLOSURES

Notes to Financial Statements
Years Ended March 31, 2011 and 2010

47



foreign currencies are exposed to the market risk of fluctuation in foreign currency exchange rates, those risks are netted 
against the balance of receivables denominated in the same foreign currency as noted above.

Maturities of bank loans and lease obligations are less than five years after the balance sheet date.  Although a part of 
such bank loans and lease obligations are exposed to market risks from changes in variable interest rates, those risks are 
mitigated by using derivatives of interest-rate swaps.

Derivatives mainly include forward foreign currency contracts and interest-rate swaps, which are used to manage 
exposure to market risks from changes in foreign currency exchange rates of receivables and payables, and from 
changes in interest rates of bank loans.  Please see Note 16 for more detail about derivatives.

(3) Risk management for financial instruments
Credit risk management

Credit risk is the risk of economic loss arising from a counterparty's failure to repay or service debt according to the 
contractual terms.  The Company manages its credit risk from receivables on the basis of internal guidelines, which 
include monitoring of payment terms and balances of major customers by each business administration department to 
identify the default risk of customers in early stage.  With respect to held-to-maturity financial investment, the Company 
manages its exposure to credit risk by limiting its funding to high credit rating bonds in accordance with in its internal 
guidelines.  Please see Note 16 for the detail about derivatives.

The maximum credit risk exposure of financial assets is limited to their carrying amounts as of March 31, 2011.

Market risk management (foreign exchange risk and interest rate risk)

Foreign currency trade receivables and payables are exposed to market risk resulting from fluctuations in foreign currency 
exchange rates.  Such foreign exchange risk is hedged principally by forward foreign currency contracts.  In addition, 
when foreign currency trade receivables and payables are expected from forecasted transaction, forward foreign currency 
contract may be used under the limited contract term of half year.

Interest rate swaps are used to manage exposure to market risks from changes in interest rates of loan payables and 
bond payables.

Short-term investment and investment securities are managed by monitoring market values and financial position of 
issuers on a regular basis.

Basic principles of derivative transactions have been approved by management meeting on a semiannual basis based 
on the internal guidelines which prescribe the authority and the limit for each transaction by the corporate treasury 
department.  Reconciliation of the transaction and balances with customers is made, and the transaction data has been 
reported to the chief financial officer and the management meeting on a monthly basis.

(4) Fair values of financial instruments
Fair values of financial instruments are based on quoted price in active markets.  If quoted price is not available, other 
rational valuation techniques are used instead.  Also please see Note 16 for the detail of fair value for derivatives.
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(a) Fair value of financial instruments

March 31, 2010
Carrying
Amount

Fair
Value

Unrealized
Gain/Loss

Cash and cash equivalents
Receivables - trade accounts
Short-term investment and investment securities
Total
Payables - trade accounts
Short-term bank loans
Payables - construction
Long-term debt
Lease obligations
Derivatives
Total

¥    2,621
10,407

370
¥  13,398
¥    2,069

8,900
5,573

23,950
4,614

384
¥  45,490

¥       233
36

¥       269

Millions of Yen

¥    2,621
10,407

370
¥  13,398
¥    2,069

8,900
5,573

24,183
4,650

384
¥  45,759

March 31, 2011
Carrying
Amount

Fair
Value

Unrealized
Gain/Loss

Cash and cash equivalents
Receivables - trade accounts
Investment securities
Total
Payables - trade accounts
Short-term bank loans
Payables - construction
Long-term debt
Lease obligations
Derivatives
Total

¥    5,605
13,596

307
¥  19,508
¥    4,670

9,400
15,647
45,450
3,578

402
¥  79,147

¥       126
29

¥       155

Millions of Yen

¥    5,605
13,596

307
¥  19,508
¥    4,670

9,400
15,647
45,576
3,607

402
¥  79,302

March 31, 2011
Carrying
Amount

Fair
Value

Unrealized
Gain/Loss

Cash and cash equivalents
Receivables - trade accounts
Investment securities
Total
Payables - trade accounts
Short-term bank loans
Payables - construction
Long-term debt
Lease obligations
Derivatives
Total

$   67,530
163,807

3,699
$ 235,036
$   56,265

113,253
188,518
547,590
43,108
4,844

$ 953,578

$    1,518
350

$    1,868

Thousands of U.S. Dollars

$   67,530
163,807

3,699
$ 235,036
$   56,265

113,253
188,518
549,108
43,458
4,844

$ 955,446

Notes to Financial Statements
Years Ended March 31, 2011 and 2010
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March 31, 2011
Due in One

Year or Less
Due after One Year
through Five Years

Due after Five Years
through Ten Years

Due after
Ten Years

Cash and cash equivalents 
Receivables - trade accounts
Total

¥    5,605
13,596

¥  19,201

Millions of Yen

March 31, 2010
Due in One

Year or Less
Due after One Year
through Five Years

Due after Five Years
through Ten Years

Due after
Ten Years

Cash and cash equivalents
Receivables - trade accounts
Short-term investment and investment securities:

Held-to-maturity securities
Total

¥    2,621
10,407

100
¥  13,128

Millions of Yen

March 31, 2011 Millions of Yen Thousands of U.S. Dollars

Investments in equity instruments that do not
 have a quoted market price in an active market

Carrying Amount

¥    4 $    48

March 31, 2010 Millions of Yen

Investments in equity instruments that do not
 have a quoted market price in an active market

Carrying Amount

¥    4

Cash and cash equivalents
The carrying values of cash and cash equivalents approximate fair value because of their short maturities.

Receivables and payables
The fair values of receivables and payables are measured at the amount to be received or paid at maturity discounted 
at the Company's assumed corporate discount rate. 
 
Short-term investment and investment securities
The fair values of short-term investment and investment securities are measured at the quoted market price of the 
stock exchange for the equity instruments, and at the quoted price obtained from the financial institution for certain 
debt instruments.  The information of the fair value for the marketable and investment securities by classification is 
included in Note 3.

Short-term bank loans, long-term debt and lease obligations
The fair values of short-term bank loans, long-term debt and lease obligations are determined by discounting the cash 
flows related to the debt at the Company's assumed corporate borrowing rate.

Derivatives
The information of the fair value for derivatives is included in Note 14.

(b) Financial instruments whose fair value cannot be reliably determined
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The Company enters into foreign currency forward contracts to hedge foreign exchange risk associated with certain 
assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies.  The Company also enters into interest rate swap contracts to 
manage its interest rate exposures on certain liabilities.

All derivative transactions are entered into to hedge interest and foreign currency exposures incorporated within its 
business.  Accordingly, market risk in these derivatives is basically offset by opposite movements in the value of hedged 
assets or liabilities.

Because the counterparties to these derivatives are limited to major international financial institutions, the Company 
does not anticipate any losses arising from credit risk.

Derivative transactions entered into by the Company have been made in accordance with internal policies which 
regulate the authorization and credit limit amount.

As noted in Note 15, the Company applied ASBJ Statement No. 10 "Accounting Standard for Financial Instruments", 
and ASBJ Guidance No. 19 "Guidance on Accounting Standard for Financial Instruments and Related Disclosures".  The 
accounting standard and the guidance are applicable to financial instruments and related disclosures at the end of the 
fiscal years ending on or after March 31, 2010.  

Derivative transactions to which hedge accounting is applied at March 31, 2011 and 2010

16.DERIVATIVES

At March 31, 2011
Hedged

Item
Contract 
Amount

Contract Amount
Due after One Year

Fair
Value

Interest rate swaps:
(fixed rate payment, floating rate receipt) Long-term Debt ¥    402

Millions of Yen

¥  21,950 ¥  21,950

Millions of Yen

At March 31, 2011
Hedged

Item
Contract 
Amount

Contract Amount
Due after One Year

Fair
Value

Interest rate swaps:
(fixed rate payment, floating rate receipt) Long-term Debt $  4,844

Thousands of U.S. Dollars

$  264,458 $  264,458

At March 31, 2010
Hedged

Item
Contract 
Amount

Contract Amount
Due after One Year

Fair
Value

Foreign currency forward contracts:
Selling U.S.$

Interest rate swaps:
(fixed rate payment, floating rate receipt)

Receivables

Long-term Debt ¥    384

¥    4,415

¥  21,950 ¥  21,950

Notes to Financial Statements
Years Ended March 31, 2011 and 2010

Please see Note 5 for annual maturities of long-term debt and Note 12 for obligations under finance leases, respectively.

March 31, 2011
Due in One

Year or Less
Due after One Year
through Five Years

Due after Five Years
through Ten Years

Due after
Ten Years

Cash and cash equivalents 
Receivables - trade accounts
Total

$   67,530
163,807

$ 231,337

Thousands of U.S. Dollars
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For the years ended March 31, 2011 and 2010
In March 2008, the ASBJ revised ASBJ Statement No. 17 "Accounting Standard for Segment Information Disclosures" 

and issued ASBJ Guidance No. 20 "Guidance on Accounting Standard for Segment Information Disclosures".  Under the 
standard and guidance, an entity is required to report financial and descriptive information about its reportable segments.  
Reportable segments are operating segments or aggregations of operating segments that meet specified criteria.  
Operating segments are components of an entity about which separate financial information is available and such 
information is evaluated regularly by the chief operating decision maker in deciding how to allocate resources and in 
assessing performance.  Generally, segment information is required to be reported on the same basis as is used 
internally for evaluating operating segment performance and deciding how to allocate resources to operating segments.  
This accounting standard and the guidance are applicable to segment information disclosures for the fiscal years 
beginning on or after April 1, 2010.

In addition, segment information disclosure under the revised ASBJ Statement No. 17 for the year ended March 31, 
2010 has also been presented for comparison purposes.

The segment information for the year ended March 31, 2010 under the revised accounting standard is also disclosed 
hereunder as required.

 
1.Description of reportable segments

The Company's reportable segments are those for which separately financial information is available and regular 
evaluation by the Company's management is being performed in order to decide how resources are allocated among 
the Company.  Therefore, the Company's segment consist of the Titanium Business Division, Polycrystalline Silicon 
Business Division and High-performance Materials Business Division. 

Titanium Business Division - Production and sales of mainly titanium sponge and titanium ingot
Polycrystalline Silicon Business Division - Production and sales of Polycrystalline silicon
High-performance Materials Business Division - Production and sales of mainly high-purity titanium, titanium 
powder and silicon monoxide

2.Methods of measurement for the amounts of sales, profit (loss), assets and other items for each reportable segment
The accounting policies of each reportable segment are consistent to those disclosed in Note 2, "Summary of 
Significant Accounting Policies".

17.SEGMENT INFORMATION

The above foreign currency forward contracts which qualify for hedge accounting and meet specific matching criteria are 
not remeasured at market value, because trade receivables settled by forward exchange contracts are translated at the 
contract rates.  In addition, the fair value of such foreign currency forward contracts in Note 15 is included in that of 
hedged items (i.e. receivables - trade accounts). 

The fair value of derivative transactions is measured at the quoted price obtained from the financial institution.
The contract or notional amounts of derivatives which are shown in the above table do not represent the amounts 

exchanged by the parties and do not measure the Company's exposure to credit or market risk.
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2011

Titanium Business
Division Total

Reportable Segment
Polycrystalline 

Silicon Business
Division

High-performance 
Materials Business

Division TotalReconciliations

Titanium Business
Division Total

Polycrystalline 
Silicon Business

Division

High-performance 
Materials Business

Division TotalReconciliations

Titanium Business
Division Total

Polycrystalline 
Silicon Business

Division

High-performance 
Materials Business

Division TotalReconciliations

Sales:
Sales to external customers
Intersegment sales or transfers

Total
Segment profit (loss)
Segment assets
Other:

Depreciation
Increase in property, plant and 
equipment and intangible assets

¥  26,390

26,390
(2,044)
68,938

7,843

2,104

¥   4,553

4,553
(3,150)
47,278

3,219

30,895

¥   2,815

2,815
874

3,668

78

111

¥ 33,758

33,758
(4,320)

119,884

11,140

33,110

¥   5,605

 
813

¥ 33,758

33,758
(4,320)

125,489

11,140

33,923

Millions of Yen

2011
Reportable Segment

Sales:
Sales to external customers
Intersegment sales or transfers

Total
Segment profit (loss)
Segment assets
Other:

Depreciation
Increase in property, plant and 
equipment and intangible assets

$ 317,952

317,952
(24,627)
830,579

94,494

25,349

$  54,855

54,855
(37,951)
569,614

38,783

372,230

$  33,916

33,916
10,530
44,193

940

1,337

$ 406,723

406,723
(52,048)

1,444,386

134,217

398,916

$  67,530

 
9,794

$ 406,723

406,723
(52,048)

1,511,916

134,217

408,710

Thousands of U.S. Dollars

2010
Reportable Segment

Sales:
Sales to external customers
Intersegment sales or transfers

Total
Segment profit (loss)
Segment assets
Other:

Depreciation
Increase in property, plant and 
equipment and intangible assets

¥  18,857

18,857
(1,640)
64,776

9,788

2,593

¥  11,298

11,298
3,343

24,383

1,892

7,806

¥   1,753

1,753
(139)

2,402

92

734

¥ 31,908

31,908
1,564

91,561

11,772

11,133

¥   2,720

 
1,166

¥ 31,908

31,908
1,564

94,281

11,772

12,299

Millions of Yen

Notes to Financial Statements
Years Ended March 31, 2011 and 2010

3.Information about sales, profit (loss), assets and other items is as follows.
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4.Information about geographical areas
(1) Sales

5.Information about major customers

a.Appropriation of Retained Earnings
The following appropriation of retained earnings at March 31, 2011 was approved at the Board of Directors held on 
May 13, 2011:

18.SUBSEQUENT EVENT

Notes: *The amounts included under "Reconciliations" are as follows.
(1)"Reconciliations" of "Segment assets" represents corporate assets.
(2)"Reconciliations" of "Increase in property, plant and equipment and intangible assets" represents amount of 
    capital investment in common division.
    ** "Segment profit (loss)" represents operating income (loss) in the statements of operations.

Note:  Sales are classified in counties based on location of customers.

2011

Millions of Yen

Total

¥  33,758

Other

¥   4,387

China

¥   3,493

U.S.A.

¥   8,533

Japan

¥  17,345

2011

Thousands of U.S. Dollars

Total

$ 406,723

Other

$ 52,856

China

$ 42,084

U.S.A.

$ 102,807

Japan

$  208,976

2011

Name of Customers
SUMITOMO CORPORATION

Shinsho Corporation
Marubeni Corporation

Sales

Related Segment Name

$ 222,229
 
55,940
40,711

Titanium Business Division, Polycrystalline Silicon Business Division and 

High-performance Materials Business Division

Titanium Business Division and High-performance Materials Business Division

Titanium Business Division and Polycrystalline Silicon Business Division

¥  18,445
 

4,643
3,379

Millions of Yen
Thousands of
U.S. Dollars

Millions of Yen Thousands of U.S. Dollars

Year-end cash dividends, ¥10.0 ($0.12) per share ¥     368 $  4,434
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT

To the Board of Directors of OSAKA Titanium technologies Co., Ltd.:

We have audited the accompanying balance sheets of OSAKA Titanium technologies Co., Ltd. (the "Company") 

as of March 31, 2011 and 2010, and the related statements of operations, changes in equity, and cash flows for 

the years then ended, all expressed in Japanese yen.  These financial statements are the responsibility of the 

Company's management.  Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our 

audits.  

We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in Japan.  Those standards 

require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial 

statements are free of material misstatement.  An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting 

the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements.  An audit also includes assessing the accounting 

principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial 

statement presentation.  We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the financial 

position of OSAKA Titanium technologies Co., Ltd. as of March 31, 2011 and 2010, and the results of its 

operations and its cash flows for the years then ended in conformity with accounting principles generally 

accepted in Japan.

Our audit also comprehended the translation of Japanese yen amounts into U.S. dollar amounts and, in our 

opinion, such translation has been made in conformity with the basis stated in Note 1.  Such U.S. dollar amounts 

are presented solely for the convenience of readers outside Japan.

June 16, 2011 
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Stock Information  (as of March 31, 2011)

(Thousands of Shares)

Foreign entities
2,202

5.99％

Shareholders and Shares

8,739,620,000 yen

Total shares issuable (Shares):
                          125,760,000
Shares outstanding (Shares):
                            36,800,000
Trading unit (Shares):            100
Number of shareholders:   25,025

Paid-up Capital

Items Pertaining 
to Shares

Major Shareholders

Total

8,800
8,800
1,249
864
566
314
261
248
193
179

21,475

Shareholders Distribution by Category

Securities Code: 5726

Agent for the Management of Shareholders’ Register and Special Accounts:

The Sumitomo Trust and Banking Co., Ltd. 

5-33, Kitahama 4-chome, Chuo-ku, Osaka

Agent’s Business Location: 

Stock Transfer Agency Department

The Sumitomo Trust and Banking Co., Ltd.

5-33, Kitahama 4-chome, Chuo-ku, Osaka

(Mailing address)

Stock Transfer Agency Department

The Sumitomo Trust and Banking Co., Ltd.

1-10 Nikko-cho, Fuchu-shi, Tokyo 183-8701 

(Telephone Inquiries)

0120-176-417 (Toll free, only available when calling within Japan)

Market Listings: Tokyo Stock Exchange, 1st section

Sumitomo Metal Industries, Ltd.

Kobe Steel, Ltd.

The Master Trust Bank of Japan, Ltd. (Trust Account)

Sumitomo Corporation

Japan Trustee Service Bank, Ltd. (Trust Account)

JP MORGAN CHASE BANK 385166

STATE STREET BANK AND TRUST COMPANY ５０５103

J.P. MORGAN CLEARING CORP-CLEARING

Matsui Securities Co., Ltd.

MORGAN STANLEY & CO.INC

23.91
23.91
3.39
2.35
1.54
0.85
0.71
0.67
0.52
0.49
58.36

(Note) The shareholding ratio was calculated after deducting 1,194 treasury stocks from the total number of shares outstanding.

Financial institutions 3,458 9.40％

Other domestic
corporations
18,979

51.57％

Individuals and others
10,297

27.98％

Foreign entities
3,487

9.48％

Securities firms 576 1.57％

Shares Held
(Thousands of Shares)Names of Entity Ratio of Shares Held to 

Total Shares Outstanding (%)

57



Corporate Data

OSAKA Titanium technologies Co.,Ltd.

November 26, 1952

8,739,620,000 yen (as of March 31, 2011)

674 (as of March 31, 2011)

Shozo Nishizawa   President & Representative Director

Headquarters/Amagasaki Plant
1 Higashihama-cho, Amagasaki, Hyogo 
660-8533, Japan
Tel. +81-6-6413-9911 Fax. 81-6-6413-4343

Kishiwada Works
3-2, Kishinoura-cho, Kishiwada, Osaka 
596-0016, Japan
Tel. +81-72-479-3010 FAX. +81-72-479-3050

Tokyo Office
Shimbashi Sumitomo Building 6th floor, 5-11-3 
Shimbashi, Minato-ku, Tokyo 105-0004, Japan
Tel. +81-3-5776-3102 Fax. +81-3-5776-3111

 Established as Osaka Special Steel Manufacturing
 Incorporated as Osaka Special Steel Manufacturing Co.
Commenced research into manufacture of titanium metal
 Built Japan’s first titanium pilot plant
 Equity stake taken by Sumitomo Metal Industries, Ltd.
 Changed the trade name to Osaka Titanium Co., Ltd.
Equity stake taken by Kobe Steel, Ltd.
Construction completed for titanium plant with monthly 
capacity of 25 tons
Commenced polycrystalline silicon research and 
development
Started production of polycrystalline silicon
Completed the magnesium chloride electrolysis plant
 Completed the first phase of the second electrolysis plant
 Awarded the Okouchi Memorial Production Prize for titanium 
manufacturing technology
Completed 14 silos to hold raw materials for titanium
 Completed 80,000 ampere electrolysis cell
Received MITI grant for unifying reduction and separation 
processes
 Completed reduction/separation furnaces (2 ton batch)
Completed liquid chloride furnace
Commenced operation of Integrated titanium U-furnace
(5 ton batch)
Completed the new electrolysis cell (multi-polar cell method)
 Completed the titanium ingot plant
 Completed the new distillation plant
Completed the new titanium sponge plant and started 
production in the new products plant
Completed the first phase of the polycrystalline silicon plant
 Merged with Kyushu Electronic Metal Co., Ltd.
Changed the company name to Sumitomo Sitix Corporation
Amagasaki Plant received ISO9002 certification
 Established Sitix of Amagasaki, Inc., a 100% subsidiary of 
Sumitomo to Sumitomo Titanium Corporation

 Changed the trade name to Sumitomo Sitix of Amagasaki 
after business of Amagasaki manufacturing and technology 
units (titanium, polycrystalline silicon, new products) was 
transferred from Sumitomo Sitix Corporation.
Received ISO 14001 certification
Changed the trade name to Sumitomo Titanium Corporation
Completed capacity increase construction work at titanium 
sponge plant (increased annual production capacity from 
15,000 tons to 18,000 tons)
 Listed on the 2nd section of Tokyo Stock Exchange
Received AS9000 certification, transferred to ISO9001: 2000
Listed on first section of Tokyo Stock Exchange
Transferred from the 2nd section to the 1st section of Tokyo 
Stock Exchange
Increased annual production capacity for titanium sponge 
from 18,000 tons to 24,000 tons
Increased annual production capacity for polycrystalline 
silicon from 900 tons to 1,300 tons and started shipments
Changed the trade name to OSAKA Titanium technologies 
Co.,Ltd.
Purchased industrial site in the city of Kishiwada, Osaka
 Increased annual production capacity for titanium sponge 
from 24,000 tons to 32,000 tons (based on actual 
production capacity of 31,000 tons), increased annual 
production capacity for polycrystalline silicon from 1,300 
tons to 1,400 tons
Commenced operations at the Kishiwada Works 
Completed the titanium ingot plant at the Kishiwada Works, 
boosting annual production capacity from 7,000 tons to 
10,000 tons
Completed the new polycrystalline silicon plant at the 
Kishiwada Works, boosting annual production capacity to 
3,600 tons
Increased annual production capacity for titanium sponge 
from 31,000 tons to 37,000 tons (based on actual 
production capacity)

1937
1950
1951
1952

1953
1954

1957

1960
1961
1967

1975

1977

1978

1980
1981

1982

1984
1992
1993
1996
1997

1997

1999
2002

2005

2006

2007

2008

2009

2011

Company 

Established

Paid-up Capital

Employees

Representative

Location

Titanium Business

• Titanium Sponge

• Titanium Ingot

• Titanium Tetrachloride

• Titanium Tetrachloride Aqueous Solution 

Polycrystalline Silicon Business
• Polycrystalline Silicon

High-performance Materials Business
• High-purity Titanium
• SiO
• TILOP
• Titanium Powder

Main Products

Corporate Profile

Key Events

58




